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IN THE 

Supreme Court of Appeals of Virginia 
AT RIQHMOND. 

R~cord No. 2688 
t • I ,; • 

, .. 
t,.,. 

TESSA LEWIS, ADMINISTRATRIX OF THE ESTATE 
OF G. F. STROEBEL, DECEASED, Appellant, 

ver$us 

JENNIE BURRUS STROEBEL, Appellee. 

PETI'rION. 

To the Honorable Justicf;s of .said Court: 

Your petitioner, Tessa Lewis, Administratrix of the Es .. 
tate of G. F. Stroebel, deceased, respectfully represents that 
she is aggrieved'by a decree of the Circuit Court of the County 
of Princess Anne entered on the 7th day of August, 1942 (R., 
p. 26), in a chancery suit in which :M::rs. Jennie Burrus .Stroe­
bel was plaintiff and Tessa Lewis, Administratrix of the 
Estate of G. F. Stroebel, deceased, ·was defendant. A tran­
script of the record of the suit is her~with :filed to which refer­
ence is made. 

Page references herein are to the pages of the transcript 
of the record, p. being used t? indicate page thereof, with 
the respective numbers followmg. 

FACTR 

G. F. Stroebel died intestate on December 11th, 1939, and 
Tessa Lewis qualified on the estate as administratrix, with 
surety in the Clerk's Office of the Circuit Court of the County 
of Princess Anne. 

'· 
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2* ""Stroebel, the defendant, had marital difficulties with 
~s ":if e, Jennie Burrus Stroebel. In an endeavor to 

settle his property rights, Stroebel executed two agreements. 
One agreement in substance was for sixty dollars ($60.00) 
per month for a short period of time and forty dollars 
($40.00) per month thereafter with the disposal of certain 
Building and Loan papers that belonged to Stroebel as well 
as a diamond stud pin, and for the conveyance of certain real 
property (R., p. 51) . 

.Another agreement was executed on the 27th day of .Sep­
tember, 1938, which is the subject matter of this suit (R., 
pp. 37, 9, 10, 11 and 12). This agreement specifically provided 
that the same '' was subject to. confirmation" by the Circuit 
Court of the City of Norfolk. 

On December 4, 1939, the Circuit Court of the .City of Nor­
folk awarded Stroebel a decree a vinculo ·matri1non·ii and 
said contract was not confirmed (R., pp. 47, 48). 

On March 5, 1941, Jennie Burrus ,Stroebel filed a ,Notice 
of Motion for a judgment of eleven thousand dollars ($11,-
000.00), in that one thousand (1,000) shares of stock of the 
Peoples Building and Loan Association of Atlantic City, 
New Jersey, had been given to the plaintiff and the plaintiff 
was asking a judgment ''for the value of said one thousand 
(1,000) shares of stock''. 

All of the evidence introduced by the plaintiff consists 
of a deposition on R., pp. 6, 7 and 8, and the testimony 

3* of one *John P. Decker, R., pp. 39, 40, 41, 42, 43, 44 and 
45. 

Mrs. Stroebel testified that her original contract had been 
lost. On cross examination in answer to whether the stock 
was turned over to her she testified "I do not think he did'' 
(R., p. 7), 

On further examination she testified as follows: 

'' Q. He turned it over to vou when vou were divorced Y 
'' A. I do not think he did. w 

"Q. Didn't you have the certificate in your possession at 
that timef 

'' A. I can't answer that. 
'' Q. Did you have your nephew, Norman 0. Burrus, write 

some letters for you T 
"A. Yes. 
'' Q. Did he or not send that stock to the Peoples Building 

and Loan Association at Atlantic City? 
'' A. I do not know.'~ 

The other deposition is that of Norman 0. Burrus, who is 
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a nephew of Jennie Stroebel, and he stated that he neve~ s~~ 
the certificates of stock and in fact 'lme,v notliing about it (R., 

. 8). i. . . • . ' . 

p The third and last witness in the case for the plaintiff was 
John P. ·))ecker, whose testi~riny was the marke·t value· uf 
the stock of the reoples Building and Loan Association as 
of the date of the trial, July 30~ 1942. · · · · · · · 

On ·cross examination Decker testified that the value of the 
stock that he inquired about was cotimion stock and no· other 

' (R., p. 42). · . . · 
4* *The administratrix produced in behalf of the estate 

disinterested witnesses to the effect that all matters be­
tween the plaintiff and the decedent had been settled a:nd that 
no demand :tor an.y such am61.1:ht !of sfock was ever mad~, and 
that the said, c~aim was an a£fortlio11ght. , ' 
· Mr. f . .A. Agelasto, t)"r., a Ioc·~l attcn~~ey asso~iated with 

W. R. Ashburn of this city, testified that ·one S. J. Wood­
libttie · hAd' · :requested Mr. Willard' R. Ashburn of his ·. office 
to repres·ent J emiie l3iirrus·· Stro'ehei iri 1940, ai1d that· they 
made a . preliniinaty . invest~gatibn a:nd t:t.iat there was t 'ifo 
Ifoilding and Loan stoclt (R.; p. $5). . 

·A further analysis · of the testimony indtcates th~t ~fr. 
Agelastd, associhtecl w·ith Nir. Ashbtirn, wrote 1\frs. Burrits 
and'. cl6sed' their 'files': • ~ . 0 

I . . l ' 

Mr. Rus·sen· T. Bradford, practicing attorney of this city, 
who represented the pl~inti~, statecl th~t he wrote a letter 
to ¥rs.' Lewi~ :rria~ng deni·and o~ h~r for· only two and one­
half (2%) · ·shares of' stcfo~r ·which 'stoc¥ was· in fact· in the 
name of G. s.· Stroebel, the· de·cedsed, an'd that he never' made 
any derµa_~d fo!· 011e 'thousand (l,006) sli~re;s of ·stock. . 
- Ralph' H. Dailghton, atto1·ney 'or this city, who represented 
the deceased i~ his lifetini~·, emp~atictilly testified 'that alI 
~~~ter of property ri.g;hts · ·had bM~ se~~led t~en t~e d~~ree 
was ente!ed. The attorney stated m lus testunony that tl'!ey 

were· settled and used the ~erm "absolut'ely'' (R., p. 52). 
5* On 11fu~ther questioning·;· the· witness I)a~g·hton testified 

that tliere was ·no gu·ess or speculation about it having 
been settled. 1 

• 

1 
• • , 

Tessa· Lew~s t~st.ified, that all property matters had been 
settled prior t<> the death b~ the· ·4·ec·edeilt and pi'ior to the 
entry of the :(i~al decree ·of the· Circuit' Court; that in fact 
Sttrokebel never owned· any: o~~- t~?~~~nd (1,0~) shares of 
soc . ' 

This witness was familiar with the affairs of Mr. Stroebel 
and worked for him ffrf two years prior to his death (R., pp. 
76, 77). 

S. J. Woodhouse was called by the defendant as an ad-
• I I ' ~ . • I ' l ; ' ' I • • ,, • • • - • 
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verse witness who testified he had sold fifteen hundred dol­
lars ($1,500.00) worth of stock, which consisted of fifteen 
(15) shares of Equitable Building and Loan ,Stock and ten 
(10) shares of Peoples Building and Loan stock. He stated 
that he represented lVIrs. Stroebel and requested a copy of 
the agreement which is the subject matter of this suit, and 
which contract he consulted Mr. Ashburn. He further tes­
tified that he had made a claim against the estate and for a 
settlement and division of the real property and money. His 
claim was as follows : 

"Forty trips from Third Street (Stroebel's store) to Nor­
folk, Virginia, and return talking to his creditors, negotiat­
ing loan, getting up information relative to Wolfco, Inc. Ten 
of these trips made interviewing his former wife Jennie 

Stroebel relative to division of bonds, real property and 
6* personal *things in their residence in Edgewater. These 

ten trips to see Mrs. ,Stroebel made the agreement pos­
sible which was signed by Mr. and Mrs. Stroebel in Alfred 
Anderson's office and :finally approved by the Court which 
also made their divorce possible. Three of the ten trips to 
Mrs . .Stroebel 's were spent in dividing furniture, books and 
other household property. I personally supervised this as 
well as the division of real property and money." 

"During the forty trips to Norfolk we spent practically 
the whole day seeing various people and going to and from 
the city. I :fig'llre this as $10.00 per trip $400.00. Trip to 
Atlantic City, N. J., when I sold $5,000.00 worth of Building 
and Loan stock $100; total $500. Expenses to Atlantic City, 
N. J., and return, $40; credit merchandise from .Stroebel 's 
store $34.38; $10 advanced for expenses to Atlantic City, New 
Jersey. Check to me from proceeds of Building and Loan 
Stock in Atlantic Oity, New Jersey, $100; cash handed me 
in Norfolk, Virg·inia, $70; cash advanced me by J. F. Wood­
house for Stroebel $25-; total credit $239.28, balance due 
$300.72." (R., p. 69.) 

He further stated that he sued Mr. Stroebel in his life­
time for his personal services in settling their affairs. Upon 
further investigation of the witness W ooclhouse he testified 
tllat he received the enclosed letter: 

"Burlington, Iowa, 12/21/39. 

"Dear Mr. W ooclhouse : 
"Have been very, very ill, hence my long silence .. 
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"I do hope the late Mr . .Stroebel paid what was due you. 
Just had word of his passing·. ·wish I had my machine · 

7* and jewelry. *I hav:e a very small income,, and getting 
along best I can,, but would be glad to have my things 

from that creature he lived with. Am I righU 
''I will not soon forget the great kindness you and Mr.· 

Anderson have shown me. I will duly appreciate any in­
formation regarding his affairs, and if I can claim anything 
else he had Zef t. 

"I hope you have all success in the future, and a merry 
Christmas and happy New Year. 

'' Thanking you in advance, I remain, 

' 'Yours sincerely, 

"MRS. JANE BURRUS 
. ''Nee Stroebel.'' 

'' I have resumed my family name of Burrus, Ad. 422 Co­
lumbia Street.'' 

In this letter it will be noted that :Mrs. Stroebel, the com­
plainant, wanted to know ''if I ca.n claim anything else that 
he had left". · 

He then stated that he started the iitigation but called on 
Mr. Ashburn and thereafter Mr. Bridgers. He further stated 
that he knew that Mr. Bradford was in the case and making 
a claim for only 2% shares of stock but that "he is just a 
cheap lawyer" and stated further that he would not trust 
l1im. 

By agTeement of counsel, it was stipulated that Honorable 
Paul W. Ackiss, Commonwealth's Attorney for Princess Anne 
County, who represented Mr. Stroebel in his lifetime in an 
action instituted by Woodhouse for commission, and that the 

Trial Justice Court denied him a recovery (R., p. 75). 
8* *Depositions were taken in behalf of the defendant in 

Atlantic City, New Jersey, after counsel had agreed to 
accept service and then refused to do so. 

The depositions stated that on October 6, 1938, fifteen (15) 
shares of Peoples Building and Loan stock and ten (10) 
shares of Equitable Building and Loan stock were sold and 
were standing- in the name of Freel or Jennie Stroebel and 
bought by Robert B. Cadwallader for :fifteen hundred dollars 
($1.500.00). 

That Walter Parker, secretary of the Peoples Building and 
Loan Association, testified that all the stock owned by Fred 
Stroebel or Jennie Stroebel were fifteen (15) fully paid 
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shares of stock owned by them; that James W. Cullen, secre-
. tary:·,of the)Tiq~fable ~~i14irig aii.d Lo~· Asso~i~tio~, stated 
*at t~ere :were :t.2:Yz shares of stock m the name· of. (l F. 
Stroebel and ·that fen (10) of the shares had been sold to, 
·cadwallader. and that tliere had remained 2% shares· o'f. s~ock 
on . the books ·at this tiine. . . .. -. .. . . . . . . . 

On this evJqence, ·havi1:1-g stricke~ a gre~t portion of the 
same, t'.he Court ·enteted its decree of August 7th, 1942, and 
award~d the complainant a judgment of eleven thousa:nq. dol-
lars { $11,~.oo). . . 

ERROR ASSIGNED. 

The eITor assigned is that the Circuit Court erred in en­
tering the decree' of August· 7th, 1942, in awarding· the com­
plainant a judgment of eleven thousand dollars ($11,000.00). 

9'"' 9 ARGUMENT. 

The 1.trgnment will be quite brief as we submit the state­
ment of facts constitute a very strong arg·ument. The case 
depends upon three (3) clean-cut points, to-wit: 

(a) Whether the evidence of the complainant is sufficiently 
corroborated. · · 

(b) Ought the court to have _stricken from the evidence the 
depositions and the evidence to which the defendant excepted? 

( c) Ought ·the court to have granted a continuance where 
the cause· had ·not tnaturedt ·. · 

Treating these questions separately we submit: 

(a) That the evidence of the plaintiff is not corroborated. 

Section 6209 of the ·Code of Virginia provides as follows : . ;• 

''In an action or suit hy ~r against a person who, from any 
cause, is· incapable of testifying, or liy ·'or a~ai11st 'the ·com~ 
mittee, trustee, executor, administrator~ heir; or· bther rep­
resentative of the person so =ineapable of testifying, no judg­
ment or· decree shall be rendered in favor of an ·adverse ·or 
interested party founded on his uncorroborated testim6Iiv; 
and in arty, 'such action or suit, if such atlve:rse party ·testi­
~es, ·an ·entries, memoranda, and ~ec'larations· by the party 
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so incapable of test~fying made while he was capable, rele­
vant to the matter in issue, may be received as evidence.'~ 

In P.imberlake v. Fitgli, 1&8 Va. 397, 163 ,S. E. 402: 

In constru~g this section, the court said: 

~f']his section fs designed to preven~ fraud and for th~t 
reason may not be whittled away.'' 

10~ 'hl White v. Pacific iife l2isur.ance Con_ipany, 150 Va. 
849, 143 S. E~ 340, the court said: 

'~In order to establish a cq~tra~t with a deceased person 
under this section'ther.e m-qst be di$irtter.ested testimony point­
ing with reasatia~~e certaintJJ to and cor.roboratio1i · of, the 
material evicte~ice given by. an interested wit?zess, or. wit­
ne$ses. 

"In Tirusfow v. Ball, 166 Va. 6D8, pl 4, 186 iS. E. 11, the 
court held that under the provisions of this section th~re 
must be corroborativA evidtmce of the ag·1~eement, when· as 
in this case, it appears ~a~ one of the parties ~s qeaq. '' 

All of the facts an¢! circum~tances indicate by (1) Attor.­
ney P. A. Ag~lasto, Jr.~. (2) Attorney Ralph ~. :paug~l!tQn; 
(3) the lett~r from Jennw ~tro~bel to S. J. W~o~ouse; (4) 
the action of S. J. Woodhouse against the deceased; (5) the 
testimony of Russell T. Bradford; (6) Tessa Lewis; (7) the 
depositions of wttne~ses in 'Atlantic· City; and· (8) the decre~ 
of the Cir.cuit Court, thqt the p1~oper.·ty. rig·hts had been 
settled. ' · · 

Cer.tai:ply the d~ree or the 9ircu~t Oo~rt of t~e Ctty or 
Norfolk on December 5, 1939, did not confirm the agreement 
Qf. that anything had to be dol\~ ·oetween the parties. It ca:q­
not be imagined t:tiat a lawyer. such as the 'I~te Alfred A.n¢tf~r-
1::1on would p~rrr:iit a decr.~e a i~inc.ulo ma,tr.imonii to have heen 
entered withput a provisio,n or confirmation of what had hi 
be dQI\e, if. the property had not been settled. ·· 

Fu:rthe.:rmor~, the testimony of Jennie Stro~bel is lacking 
i:µ ~er.t~i~ty, not convhicing·, and s1.1b~ect to a belief anq 

PP\IllOU. 
U :I!' '"'I:lei~ letter to Woodhouse is the strongest sort of 

evidenc~ that this· claim is nur'ely afterthou0 ·ht and is 
t~c~nsistent and contradictor.y in- every respect~ Mor~over,. 
otl\~r counfif!l, P. A. Agelasto, Jr.., W. ·R. Ashburn and ::Etus:: 
s.~U 'l1. Br.adfor.d, neve.r made any su~h claim. Could tt b~ 
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conceived that such counsel would overlook a claim of this 
sort? 

The court said in Varner v. White, 149 Va. 177, 140 S. E. 
128, the following: 

" * * * the feature of this section which requires corrobo­
ration, in the class of cases to which it applies, is a wise one, 
and its observanGe is necessary for the protection of the 
estates of decedents.'' 

In Burton v. Masson., 142 VP. 500, 129 S. E. 356, the court 
said: 

'' Where defendants in an action by an executor to recover 
on a bond made by defendants, payable to the executor's 
decedent, all'3ged that the bond had been paid and the chief 
witness for the defense was one of the defendants, such wit­
ness falls within the designation of this section as an ad­
verse and interested party and must be corroborated.'' 

Jennie Stroebel is in the same category. 

(b) Ought the court to have stricken from the evidence the 
depositions and the evidence to which the defendant ex­
cepted; and, · 

(c) Ought the court to have granted a continuance where 
the cause had not matured Y 

The record indicates that on the 30th day of June, 1942,. 
the court granted both of the litigants a new trial and set 

the same down for trial on July 15th, 1942. This order 
12* was *entered by the court without any agreement for 

the date of the trial. On the 16th day of July, 1942, 
the court transferred the litigation to the chancery side of 
the court and set the same for trial for July 30th, 1942~ 

There was no delay on the part of counsel-(within nine 
(9) days)-011 the 25th day of Jilly, 1942, the administratrix 
filed her answer and cross-bill. The court would not permif 
the defendant to introduce any evidence in this behalf, that 
the answer and cross-bill of the defendant was returnable to 
the· first August rules; that there was no haste about the 
matter because the administratrix of the estate had given 
proper bond with sufficient surety and should have been al­
lowed to develop the case for the estate as much as possible. 
Cert~inly, where an estate is invoived, and realizing the dif:. 
:ficulties necessary to produce evidence for a decedent, the 
courts are prone to grant a continuance .. 
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The answer to the petition was filed on July 30, 1942 ( the 
date of trial). 

In fact, th·~re never has been any answer :filed by the plain­
tiff to the answer and cross-bill of the defendant. 

It is respectfully submitted that there wa.s no necessity 
for immediate trial ( see R., pp. 29, 30, 31). The defendant 
should have been given an opportunity to show that instead 
of the contract being for one thousand s_hares (1,000) of capi­
tal stock, it should have been one thousand dolla.rs ($1,000.00) 
of Building and .Loan stock. 

See sections 607 4, 6084, and 6097 Code of Virginia. 
13* .8 The issues of fact to be determined were: 

1. Whether the evidence is sufficient, or corroborated un­
der section 6209· to entitle the complainant to any relief. 

2. If the plaintiff made out a prima f acie case, whether 
the property rights of the parties had been fully settled. 

3. Whether the contract in fact. was for one thousand 
shares or one thousand dollars. 

4. ·whether the same .had been paid. 

Most of the evidence that the defendant introduced was 
stricken by order of the chancellor. 

Moreover, without adding to the authorities, it is perfectly 
obvious that a trial cannot be had on all the issues in a suit 
unless the suit has been matured for hearing, or service of 
process accepted. In this case (1) the hearing for the answer 
and cross-bill had not matured; (2.) Service of process was 
not accepted . 

.See sections 607 4, 6084, and 6097 of the Code of Virginia. 
It was therefore prejudicial to the decedent's estate to 

force a trial at this stage. 
This petition is adopted as the opening brief and will be 

filed in the office of the Clerk of the Supreme Court of Ap­
peals of Virginia in the City of Richmond, along with a tran­
script of the record and a check for one dollar and fifty cents 
( $1.50) payable to the Clerk, and oral argument for granting 

the appeal is requested before Justice John W. Eggles-
14• ton. 

*Copies of this petition were delivered to counsel for 
the appellee on the 2nd day of December, 1942. 

Your petitioner prays that the decree of the lower court 
in this case should be reversed insofar as the judgment of 
eleven thousand dollars ($11,000.00) against the defendant 
is concerned; tha.t a decree should be entered for the defend­
ant on the evidence in the case, or a new trial granted as the 
Court of Appeals may conclude proper. 
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For the foregoing reasons assigned we respectfully pray 
that an appeal ina.y-be awari!ed pending a review of this :rec-
or~ by ~s ~C?.u~t. · · · 

Bespe~Uully suhmitted, 
~ 0 o I • ..J • • ' 'o 

TE.SSA LEWIS, 
Aqministratr~ o.f the Estate of 

H. F. Str9ebel, deceased, · 
By.: LOUIS' B. FINE, Corihsel, 

600 .National Bank of Oonime1~ce ~uilding, 
· · ~ · · · · · Nor.~olkt Y,irgi11i~. 

Deeembe~ 1st, 1942~ 

I,. ~uis R. F~e~ the un~ersigneq, an ~tforn~y. d~Iy gu~li- . 
lied ta pr,actic~ m the Stlpr.eme Court of AppJ3als of V ir­
ginia, ·state fhat in my opini9n tlte decree· c9mplained Qf in 
the foregoing petition ought to be r~viewea;. -

LOUIS B. FrI.NE,. 
600 :N a~ional ~~nk of Cop.nnerce ~uil.~i~~',_ 

'.N'orfolk,. '\T1rg'lri.1a. 
' 1 I 

M. ~~ WAmTS, Clerk. 

January 13, 1943. Appeal ~warded by the Co-qrt. No b[!nd 
req~r~~ 

M. ~. W. 

Vl~~1~~ 

fl~a~ b~f iw~ ~¥i~ Circµ~t Oo1.1rl o.f :r,·~~~es~ 1\.µ:µe County 
on tlie 7th day of August, 1942. 
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Mrs. Jenni~ Burrus Stroebel, Plaintiff, 
v. 

Tessa Lewis, Executrix of the Estate of G. F. Stroebel som~­
times known as Vv. F. Stroebel, Defendant. 

NbTICE dJr MOTION. 

To : Tessa Lewis, 
Third Street and .Shore Drive 
Princess Amie County, Virginia 

TAKE NOTICE, That on the 7 day of April, 1941 or as 
soqn thereafter as Co:unsel may .be he~rd, Mrs. Jennie Burrus 
Stroeoel "\\Till move the Circuit Coiirt of Princess Anne 
County, Virginia, in the Coi1rtrooni thereof for a judgmeiit 
~g~iI}.s~, Tessa Le~.i~,. Exec~trix of th~ Es~at~. of G:·. F. 
Stroe_bel for an award of. Juclgment and execution ag~mst 
yori .for the slim of _Eleven Tho-qsand Dollars. ($11,000.00) 
together wit4 interest from the 27th day of .Septembet, _i93_8, 
together with the co~.t anct execution in these precedings, 
to:wit: 

1 .. That ori the 27th day of September, 1938, G. 
page 2 ~ F. ~troebel entere~l into an agreement th.at lie 

wonld pay the a.hove stated stjm. to your plairiti~ 
as follows: One Thousand Dollars· ($1,000.00) to be paid 
your plaintiff for her Jnterest in the properties desig'Ilated 
as 1101 S. Third Street. Burling-ton, Iowa. . 

2. Contained in the same agTee:inent G. F. Stroebel agreed 
to deliver to your plaintiff 1,000 shares of the Capitai Sto~k 
of the Peoples Building una Lo~rt Association of Atlantic 
City, New Jersey, to-wit: the valne of $10,000.00 with inter_; 
est at, ~he rate of six per cent (6%) per anntim from the 
27th day of September, 1938. 

'!'he . plai:Q.tiff avers that none of the. agreements hereto:­
fore set out as contained in the ag:r:eement entered into on 
September 27; 1938, have. peen perfotmed, . that heretofo;re 
Tessa Lewis qualified on, the Estate of G. F. Stroebel who 
died December 11th, 1939. in the Circuit Court of Princess 
Anne County, Virginif:t~ ' . 

Wherefor~,- jr~dgment tperefqre win be asked at the time 
and place of th,e said Court as hereinbef ore set forth. 

Given under my 11and this 1st day of March, 1941. 

JENNIE· STROBEL BURRUS 
JENNIE· STROBEL BURRUS 

By Counsel 
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And the return of the Sheriff of Princess Anne County, 
Virginia, on the foregoing notice of motion is as follows: 

Executed in the County of Princess Anne, Va., this 5 day 
of March 1941 by serving a copy hereof on T'essie Lewis, 
Executrix of the estate of G. F. Stroebel some times known 
as W. F. Stroebel, IN PERSON. 

pag·e 3 ~ GUY M. SALMONS, 
1Sheriff ·Of the ,Countv of Princess 

Anne, Va. 

And at another day, to-wit: on the 7th day of April, 1941, 
the following order was entered: 

This day came the plaintiff by her attorney, and the de­
fendant appeared by Louis B. Fine, her attorney, and pleaded 
the general issue, to which the plaintiff replied generally 
and upon which plea issue is joined, and on motion of the 
defendant leave is g·iven her to file special pleas within ten 
days from the date hereof and the plaintiff is required to 
file a bill of particulars of her claim within five days from 
the date hereof, and on motion of the plaintiff the defendant 
is required to file the grounds of her defense within ten days 
from the date hereof. 

And at another day, to-wit: on the 14th day of May, 1941,. 
the following order was entered: 

THIS DAY the defendant suggested the non-residence of 
the plaintiff and demanded security for costs. 

Whereupon it is ordered that the said plaintiff execute a 
bond before: the Clerk of this Court, in the penalty of $200.00, 
conditioned to pay all costs that may be incurred in the event 
of. a judgment against the plaintiff, pursuant to Section 3519 
of the Code of Virginia. 

And it appearing that the defendant, by her attorney, 
moved to require the plaintiff to file a more particular sta.te­
ment of the nature of the allegations contained in the No­
tice of Motion and of the facts the plaintiff expects to prove 

at the trial, it is ordered that the plaintiff file a 
page 4 ~ more. particular statement of her claim, and of the 

facts expected to be proved at the trial within fif­
teen. days from this date. 

And at another day, to-wit: On the 13th day of February, 

I 
I 

i 
I 

·1 

I 
I 
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1942, the following bill of particulars was filed by the plain­
tiff: 

The plaintiff for her additional Bill of Particulars set 
forth: 

1 : That the Notice of Motion sets forth the claim of the 
plaintiff in this action. 
· · 2: That the $1,000 mentioned in paragraph one has been 
paid in pitrsuant to agreement of the 27th day of .Septem­
ber, 1938, between G. F. Strobel and said Jennie B. Strobel. 

3: That no part of said agreement of 27th day of Septem­
ber, 1938 so far as it provides for the delivery of 1,000 shares 
of capital stock of the Peoples Building and Loan Associa­
tion. of Atlantic City, New Jersey, to the said Jennie B. 
Strobel has been given her, and the plaintiff is asking a judg­
ment for the value of ~aid 1,000 shares of stock which was 
.agreed by the said G. F. ·Rtrobel to be returned over to the 
said Jennie 'B. Strobel, his wife, along with other consid­
erations in full for all claim of alimony and support money 
on her part. 

That the basis for this Notice of Motion is set out in said 
~ontract between G. F. Strobel and Jennie B. Strobel un­
der elate of September 27, 1938 and that the deceased, G. 
F. Strobel, had a duplicate of said contract duly executed 

and that the defendant, or her attorney, the plain­
JJage 5 } tiff is advised, is in possession of said duplicate . 

• TENNIE B. STROBEL 
By Counsel. 

And at another day, to-wit: On the 13th day of April, 
1942, the following order was entered: 

This day came the plaintiff by her attorneys, and it ap­
pearin~; by affidavit, that a certain writing, to-wit: an agree­
ment elated September 27th, 1938, betw.een Jennie Burrus 
Stroebel and G. F. Stroebel, is in the possession of Tessa 
Lewis, Administratrix of the Estate of G. F. Stroebel, the 
defendant in the abpve entitled action, or Louis B. Fine, her 
nttornev, and that the said writing· is material and proper 
to he produced before this Court; it is thereupon ordered 
that the Clerk of this court do issue a subpoena ditces tecimi 
to compel tbe said Tessa Lewis, Administratrix of the es­
tate of G. F. Stroebel, and Louis B. Fine, her attorney to 
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Jennie Bitrrus Strobel. 

J)ro<lnce said record before this court on the 14th day of 
May, 1942~ at 10 :30 o'clock A. M. 

And at 1another day, to-wit: On the 14th day of May, 1942,. 
the :following depositions were :filed: 

T.he d~po~itions of Mrs. Jen11ie ]~ur~s Strobel and Nor­
man _O. Burrus, 1take~ befor(? Henry L. Hirsch: a ~ 9tary Pub­
lic .in and for. the City of Burlm,gto_n, State of ~qwa, pursu­
ant tp Personal Service in the law office of Edward L .. Hirsch,. 
506 Ta:qia_ Building, . Burlington, Iowa, on the 1dth day of 
April, 1942, ~t ten o'clock A._ M. . 

The deposition of Mrs .. Jennie B~rus Strobel to 
page 6 ~ l;>e r~ad in evidenc~ on behalf of the complainant 

. . in the above styled .. cause pending in the Circuit 
Court of Princes~ Anne ,Conn;ty, Virginia; and ~he dep.osi­
tion of Norman O. Burrus to be read as evidence on behalf 
of the defendant in said cause. 

Present: Edward L. Hirsch, counsel for complainant; and 
Harold·J. Wilson, counsel for defendant. 

. JENNIE BURRUS $TROE.EL, . 
being- first duly sworn, deposes and sayeth in answer to in­
terrogatories by Edward L. Hirseh as follows: 

Question 1. What is vour name Y 
.Answ~r. J'ennie Burrus S~robel, but I dropped the name 

of $trobel when I got my divorce. 
Q2. Are you the same person described as Mrs. Jennie 

Bnr_r~s Strobel in the suit against the executrix of the G:. 
F. Strobel Estate? 

A. I am. 
Q3! I hand you a.. pa per marked Exhibit ''A'', and ask you 

i.f t:\lat ~s a ()Opy Qf a contra~t you made with yol1r form.er 
hµsb~~d in settle~ent of your affairs when the divorce pro­
ceedings were pending. 

A. It is. 

(IiJxhipit ''A'' is offered in evidence) · 

Q4. 1Vliere is th~ origin~! contract Y 
. .A. :.Jt has been lost. I made a thorough search but coulil 

not find it. 
Q5. There is a statement in that contract that you ·were 
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,Jennie Burriis Strobel. 

to receive one thousand sha.res of the capital stock of the 
Peoples Building and Loan Association of Atlantic City, 
N .. J. Did you ever receive that stock? 

A. No. 
Q6. Did you receive any payment for itY 
A. Never. 
Q7. Was the equivalent of money value for these shares 

paid to you? 
A. No. 
Q8. Has that part of the agreement relative to the sale 

of the Rolfe A venue property and the property in 
page 7 ~ Burlington, Towa, heen complied with? 

A. Yes. 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

Bv Harold J. Wilson: 
· · Q9. Isn't it a fact that this stock was in both your names? 

A. Yes. 
QlO. So you had just as much interest in the stock as 

your husband? 
A. I certainlv did. 
Qll. He turned it over to you when you were divorced? 
A. I do not think he did. 
Q12. Didn't you have the certificate in your possession at 

that time? 
A. I can't swear to that. 
Q13. Did you have your nephew, Norman 0. Burrus, write 

some letters for vou Y 
A. Yes. .. 
Q14. Did he or not send that stock to the Peoples ,Build­

ing and Loan Association at Atlantic City? 
A. I do not know. 
Q15. Did you ever write to the ·company asking them to 

transfer it to vour name Y · 
A. I never did. 
Q16. Did you have Mr. Norman 0. Burrus do that for 

your? 
A. No. If he did it, I know nothing about it. 
Ql.7. Didn't you know he was trying to get it transferred 

for you? 
A. I can't remember much about it. 
Q18. How old arc you Y 
.A. Seventy-five. 
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Norman 0. Bu,rrns. 

RE-DIRECT EX.AMINATJION. 

Bv Edward L. Hirsch: 
··Q19. Could there have been other stock held by you in 

another loan association in Atlantic City! 
.A.. I think there was. I think David O. Lord was the 

Secretary of this building and loan association. 

JENNIE; BURRUS STROEBEL 

Subscribed and sworn to before me by Jennie Burrus 
Strobel this 10th day of April, 1942. 

Notarial Seal affixed. 

HENRY L. HIRSCH 
Notary Public 

page 8 ~ NOR.MAN 0. BURRUS, 
the witness produced by defendant, being first duly 

sworn, deposes and sayeth in answer to interrogatories pro­
pounded by Harold ,J. Wilson as follows : 

Question 1. Vthat is your name a.nd where to you reside Y 
Answer My name is Norman 0. Burrus and I live in Bur­

lington, Iowa. 
Q2. Are you related to Jennie Burrus Strobel, the com-

plainant? 
A. Yes. She is mv aunt. 
Q3. Did you ever act as her agent f 
A. I wrote letters for her. 
Q4. Do you know anything a.bout anv stock held in the 

name of G. F. Strobel or Jennie Burru"s Strobel issued by 
the Peoples Building and Loan Association of Atlantic City1 

N. J. y 
A. I understood there were one thousand shares of stock 

issued to them. 
Q5. Did you ever see this stock f 
A. I do not think I ever saw the certificates of stock, and 

I am not sure just how it was issued. 
Q6. ,vhat, if anything, did you do with reference to that 

stock. 
A. I had the National Bank of ·Burlington write a letter 

of inquiry for me, but do not know if any reply was received. 
Q7 .. What else did you do Y . 
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A. I wrote to a friend of mine who is connected with a 
bank in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, and asked him to find 
out the value of the stock. 

QS. What did he say! 
A. I think he said it was worth about forty cents on the 

dollar. · 

NORMAN 0. BURRUS 

Subscribed and sworn to before me by Norman n. Burrus 
this 10th day of April, 1942. 

HENRY L. HIRSCH, 
Notary Publie 

Notarial Seal Affixed. 

page 9 } State of Iowa 
County of Des Moines, ss 

I, Henry L. Hir~mh, a Notary Public in and for Des Moines 
County, Iowa, do hereby certify that the foregoing deposi­
tions of Mrs. Jennie Burrus Strobel and Norman O. Burrus 
were duly taken, and subscribed to before me in the City of 
Burlington, Des Moines County, Iowa, at the time and place 
nnd for the pµrpose mentioned in the caption of this deposi­
tion ; the same being- pursuant to the annexed notice. 

The Exhibit attached hereto was shown to and identified 
by the witness as stated in said deposition. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand 
and affixed my official seal at Burlington, Des Moines County, 
Iowa~ this loth day of April, 1942. · 

Notarial .Seal 

HENRY L. HIRSCH 
Notary Public 

My Commission expires July 4, 1942. 

EXHIBIT A 

HENRY L. HIRSCH 
Notary Public 
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THIS AGREEMENT, Made and entered into bv and be­
tween G. _ E. ~trobel, of the City of Norfolk, State of Vir­
ginia, party ef the first part, and Jennie B. Strobel, of the 
City ~nd.State aforesaid, party of the second part. 

page 10 r WHEREAS, the said parties hereto are husband 
and wife; and, 

WHEREAS, there is now depending in the Circuit Court 
of the City of Norfolk, Virginia, divorce proceedings be­
tween the said parties which haye not yet been adjudicated 
and determined; and 

WHEREAS, the said parties hereto desire to contract antl 
agree, subject to confir~ation of said Court in said proceed­
ings as to a division of their property rights; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises 
and other ·good and valuable consideration to each of the 
parties and the mutual covenants and agreements herein con­
tained, the said party of the first part agrees that the said 
party of the second part is to have and receive by proper 
deed of conveyanee, to be executed and delivered by him 
to the said party of the second pal:"t, title to property hereto­
fore occupied by the parties hereto as a home designated, 
according to the present system of numbering houses in the 
City of Norfolk, Virg·inia, as 5226 Rolfe Avenue, subject to 
a deed of trust thereon securing a balance of principal of 
$3,000.00; · that the said party of the first part, in considera­
tion of this agreement of settlement, cancels his claim to a. 
certain note evidencing· a loan to a brother of the said party 
of the second part in the principal sum of $1,000.00; as well 
as to all accrued interest thereon; that the said party of the 
second part is to have outright and as her own property all 
of tI1e household effects and furnishings in said property 
designated as 5226 Rolfe Avenue, with the exception of all 
furniture and effects in the room heretofore occupied by the 
said party of the first part, together. with one new bed and 
new dresser, also two chairs now in the living room of said 

house and two runners ; a cedar chest, all books, 
pa.ge 11 ~ and certain garden tools which are to be tJ?.e prop­

erties in fee of the said party of the first part. 
The said partie~ hereto further agree that certain real 

properties designated as 1101 South Third Street, Burling­
ton, Iowa, now jointly owned by said parties hereto are to 
he sold, and out of the proceeds therefrom the said party 
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of the first part is to pay the said party of the second party 
the sum of $1,000.00 in cash. , 

It is further agreed that the ~aid party of the second part 
is to receive one thousand shares of the capital stock of the 
Peoples Buildin.g and Loan Association of Atlantic City, 
New· Jersey, 0"111ed by them. 

The said party of the second part covenants and agrees 
that the said party of the first part is to hu ve as bis indi-. 
vidual property, in fee, properties designated as 113 North 
Delavan Avenue, Atlantic City, New Jersey, tog·ether with 
one additional lot located in snid citv. 

It is further understood and agreed that the said party 
of the first part is to pay taxes for the year 1938 on the prop.,. 
ertv designated as 5226 Rolfe A venue, and the said party of 
the" second pa.rt is to pay all taxes, together with any unpaid 
repair bills for the vear 19"38 on the property designated as 
1101 South Third Street, Burlington, Iowa. 

It is the mutual understanding and agreement of the par­
ties hereto that, subject to confirmation by the Circuit Court 
of the City of Norfolk of this agr~ement, to be determined 
by the laws governing such matters, the said parties hereto 

covenant and agree the one with the. other that 
page 12 } thev relinquish all rights, title and interest or 

claims whatsoever bv virtue of the estate. of 
curtesy or dower in and to the· respective properties of the 
parties hereto, or of any other properties which either may 
acquire in the future. 

WITNESS the following· signatures and seals this 27th day 
of September, in the year 1938. 

Virginia: 

(s} G. F, STROEBEL (Seal) 
(s) JENNIE ·B. STROEBEL (Seal) 

In the Circuit Court of the County of Princess Anne 

Mrs. Jennie Burrus Strobel, Complainant, 
v. 

Tessa Lewis, Executrix of the Estate of G. F. Strobel, some­
. times known as W. F. Strobel, Defendant. 
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NOTICE TO TAKE DEPOSITIONS. 

To: Tessa Lewis, Lynnliaven, Virginia. 

TAKE NOTICE, that on the 10th day of April, 1942, in 
the offices of Edward L. Hirsch, Attorney at law, 506 Tama 
Building, in the City of Burlington, Iowa, between the hours 
of 10 A. M. and 6 P. M. of that day, I shall proceed to take the 
depositions of myself and others to be read as evidence in 
my behalf in a certain cause now pending in: the Circuit 
Court of the County of Princess Anne, Virginia, whereon 
I am the complainant and you are the defendant; and if for 
any cause the taking of the said depositions be not com­
menced, or if commenced, be not concluded on that day, the 
taking will be adjourned from day to day, or from time to 
time, at the same place and between the same hours, until 
the same shall be completed. 

page 13} Respect£ ully Yours, 

JENNIE BURRUS STROBEL 
By Counsel 

The return of the Sheriff of Princess Anne County, Vir­
ginia, on the above notice, is as follows: 

Executed in the County of Princess Anne, Va. this 1st clay 
of April, 1942, by serving a copy hereof on T,~ssa Lewis, 
~1xecutrix of the Estate of G. F. Strobel, IN PERSON. 

GUY l\L SALMONS, 
Sheriff of the Countv of Princess 

Anne, Va. 

page 14} And on the same day, to-wit: On the 14th day 
of May, 1942, the following order was entered: 

This day came again the parties by their attorneys, and 
the defendant moved for a continuance, which motion the 
Court overruled. And thereupon came a jury, to-wit: Rob­
ert B. Taylor, John H. James, Littleton T. Keeling, Ernest 
F. Miner, Vernon H. Batten, Edwin P. Ives and James G. 
Darden, who were duly sworn the truth to speak upon the 
issue joined, and after having heard the plaintiff's evidence, 
the defendant moved to strike which motion the Court over­
ruled,; and having heard all the evidence and argument of 
counsel, retired to their room to consider of a verdict, and 
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after sometime returned into Court with the following ver­
dict: "We the Jury find for the plaintiff and fix the dam­
.ages at $3,000.00". 

·whereupon, the Court re~eiving said verdict directed the 
jury to return on the 21st day of May, 1942, and whereupon 
counsel for the plaintiff asked leave to have the Jury amend 
the verdict which motion the court overruled, to which ac­
tion of the Court Counsel exc.epted. Whereupon counsel for 
the plaintiff moved the Court to set aside the verdict and 
,enter judgment in the amount of $30,000.00, and if the Court 
refuses to do so, to grant her a new trial upon the grounds 
that the same is contrary to the law and the evidence; and 
the defendant, by counsel, moved the Court to set aside the 
verdict of the jury and grant her a new trial, upon the 
grounds that the same is contrary to the law and the evi­
dence, the hearing of which motions are continued. 

page 15 } And on another day, to-wit: On the 30th day 
of June, 1942, the following order was entered: 

This day came again the parties, by their attorneys, and 
the Court having fully heard and considered the motions 
made herein on the 14th day of May, 1942, doth overrule the 
motion of the plaintiff to set aside the verdict and enter 
jndgn1ent for ~he amount of $30,000.00, to which action of 
the Court the plaintiff by counsel excepted. Whereupon, 
the plaintiff asked leave to amend the Notice of Motion so 
as to claim the amount of $30,000.00 instead of $11,000.00, 
which leave is granted; and the Court doth sustain the mo~ 
tion of the defendant to set aside the verdict and grant a 
new trial on the g·rounds that the same is contrary to the 
law and tbe evidence. V\Thereupon, it is· ordered that a new 
trial be had herein, which trial is set for the 15th day of 
July, 1942 . 

.A.nd on another day, to-wit: On the 16th day of July, 
1942, the following petition was filed:. 

To the Honorable B. D. "White 
Judge of the aforesaid court : 

Your petitioner respectfully represents as follows: 

1. There is now pending an action at law in the Circuit 
Court of the Countv of Princess Anne-an action for Eleven 
Thom;and Dollars ($11,000.00) for damages. 
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2.. Tha;t the alleged agreement mentioned in the said No­
tice of Motion has been complied with by the defendant's 
decedent in his lifetime and the plaintiff was required by 
said agreement to convey unto the decedent her undivided 
one-half interest into certain real property located in the 

State of New Jersey, all of which appears in said 
page 16 ~ ag·reement.. · 

3. That before any rig-ht of action could be had, 
the plaintiff should comply with her part of the agreement. 

4. In fact the defendant has complied with the agreement 
and the plaintiff has failed to do so .. 

5. That the action of the. plaintiff is in fact an accounting 
a,nd whereas the defendant prays that the plaintiff be re­
quired to convey the property as set out in said agreement. 

6. That the present action a.t law is inadequate to compel 
the phintiff to transfer the said property. 

7. That unless this Honorable Court transfer this action 
to the equity side for compliance by the plaintiff, your peti­
tioner is remediless to compel the plaintiff to comply with 
the agreement in that a judgment would not compensate the 
estate of W. F. Stroebel, deceased, and thut chancery snit is 
a proper f ornm. 

8. That the said agreement .is cognizable in eqnitv and 
will give both the parties such rights as they may have. 

WHER-EFORE YOUH. PETITIONER PRAYS that this 
Honorable Court transfer said action at la.w to the equity 
· side of the court, and that the pleading·s be amended to con­
form to said chancery practice in conformity with Section 
6084 of the Code of Virginia. 

And your petitioner will ever pray, etc. 

TESSA LEWIS 
By LOUIS B. FINE 

Counsel 

.And OJ). the same day, to-wit: On the 16th day of July, 
1942, the following order was entered : 

THIS DAY tl1e defendant moved the court for 
page 17 ~ transfer of the above action to the chancery side 

of the court after notice to counsel for the plain-
tiff, and filed a petition in support of said motion. . 

AND THE COURT HAVING considered said petition is 
of t.l1e opinion that the said motion should be granted, tha.t 
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the ~aid MtioP. at law is transf~rreq. to the chan~ery side of 
the court, with ·the priyil€ge -unto t:pe plaintiff to amend the 
pleadings ip. conformity with cl1ancer:v practice, and thi~ 
cau$e ehall be heard on the 30t4 da.y of° J µly, 1942 . 

.And on another day, to-wit: On the 25th day of luly, 
1942, the following answer anq. cross-bill w~s filed by the 
defendant : 

THE ANSWER OF TESSA LEWIS, ADl\HNISTRAT:,_:?,IX 
OF THE ESTATE OF G. F. STROE·BEL, DECEASED, 
TO A NOTICE OF MOTION FIJ..,ED AGAINST IlER 
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE COUNTY O:B1 

PRINCESS ANNE, BY MRS. JENNIE. BU:JtRUS 
~TROEBEL lV HI C H WAS SUBSEQUENTLY 
'-rRANSFERRED TO THE CHANCERY SIDE OF 
THE couarr. · · · ' · 

This E.e~pondent, reserving· to herself the benefit of all 
just e:;ceptions under $Hid N otic~ of MotiQn, for answer 
th~r~to, oi~ tq so much thereof as ~lie is advised it is material 
that she should answer, ~msw~rs ~nd says : 

1. 'Phat the defendant administratrix is not indebted to 
the pl~intiff 'in ~:µy amount whatsoeyer, but on the contr~ry 
th~ said plaintiff received her one tpommnq. dollars ($1,000.00) 
for her interest in properties in Burling-ton, Iowa, and that 
she received all the stoek of the Builcl.irig and Lo_ap. thijt ~he 
was entitled to. 

2. Th& t :no d~mp.nd w µa tsoever has been made by the de­
ceclent for any stock of the :peoples BuHding and Loan As-
sociatioi1. · 

page 18 ~ A.rid :µow tliis Respondent for further answer to 
gaid Notice of Motion, which has been transferred 

to the Equity side, in setting up a. claim to affil'mative relief 
agai~1st the ~aid plaintiff, tn answering s~ys: That the pl{!in­
tiff has two• and one-h.alf (2%) sp~res of B~ilding anq Lo~n 
Stock; which is in an income share certificate number 1195 
issued September 9th, 1926, from the Equitable B~ilqing anp. 
Loan Association of Atlantic. City, New· J'ersey, ~nd tha.t the 
same is in her possession; that this defendant is able, ready, 
and willirnr to end~:n·se Sl!,id stock 9ver to the plaintiff pro­
vided she will convey her undivided orie-half interest in' saiq 
real estate known as Lot 7, Block 304 B of the location lmown 
a~ Delavan in Marg~te City, N~w Jersey, as well ~s a lot 
known as number 1.2 located at Claremont, the lot being as-
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sessed for three hundred and ten dollars ($310.00), and the 
house and lot ass(.lssed for thirteen hundred ninety dollars 
($1,390.00); that the saicl defendant has refused to convey 
her interest in said real estate, whereas this defendant is 
willing to transfer the interest in said Building and Loan 
stock to the plaintiff upon tender of a deed. 

That although the contract calls for one thousand (1,000) 
shares of stock, said stock was meant to be one thousand 
dollars ($1,000.00) worth of stock, as this defendant never 
owned and never had any one thousand (1,000) shares of 
stock. 

The defendant the ref ore prays that Jennie Burrus Stroebel 
may be made a party defendant to this action setting up af­
firmative relief, and be required to answer the same ; that 
the defendant may have conveyed unto the estate of G. F. 
Stroebel the interest that Jennie Burrus Stroebel may have 
into said real estate; that the said plaintiff be required to 

tender a deed before maintaining any further pro­
page 19 ~ ceedings; that the plaintiff be enjoined from any 

further proceedin,gR and from taking . any further 
action in connection with this proceeding·, and that the eloud 
on the title be removed; that the alleged ~<>'!'eement between 
the parties be reformed, tl1at the same be interpreted, that the 
rights of the parties be adjudicated; that the said defend­
ant may be dismissed with her costs as to the plaintiff's ac­
tion, and grant unto the defendant such other relief as the 
nature of her. case may require or· to equity may seem meet,. 
aud this defendant will ever pray, etc. 

TESSA LEWIS, 
Exeeutrix of the Estate of G. F. Stroebel 

sometimes known as vY. F. Stroebel, 
Deceased, 

By LOUIS B. FINE 
Counsel 

And on another day, to-wit: On the 29th day of July,. 
1942, the following depositions were filed: 

State of New Jersey, 
Atlantic County, ss. 

Hiram Steelman, of full age, being· duly sworn according 
to law, upon his oath, deposes and says: 

That he, as a Supreme Court Commissioner of the State / 

I 

I 
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of New Jersey, will faithfully, fairly and impartially execute 
the Commission herein to the best of bis ability and under­
standing. 

HIRAM STEELMAN 

Sworn and Subscribed to before me this 28th day of July, 
1942. . 

JOSEPH BERNARD KAUFFMAN 
Master in Chancery of N. J. 

page 20 } ON NOTICE TO TAKE DEPOSITIONS. 

REPORT AND DEPOSITION1S. 

To the Judge of the Circuit Court of the County of Princess 
Anne in the State of Virginia: 

The Undersigned, Hiram Steelman, a Suprem.e Court Com­
missioner of the State of New Jersey, respectfully reports 
that, pursuant to a Notice to Take Depositions in the above 
entitled cause and issuing out of the Circuit Court of the 
County of Princess Anne, I did, on the 28th day of July, 
1942: at the hour of 1 o'clock in the afternoon, at the law 
offices of Harcourt & Steelman, Real Estate and Law Build­
ing, Atlantic City, New Jersey, proceed to take the deposi­
tions of .r amcs "\V. Cullen, Walter Parker and Robert B. Cad­
wallader; each of the Raid witnesses was first duly sworn by 
me, was examined by me concerning· the matters within their 
knowledge, and their testimony was reduced by me to writ­
ing-: which I caused to he signed by each of said witnessos. 
Said depositions are attached hereto and made a part hereof 
in accordance with the provisions of the statute thereto per­
taining. 

I further certify that there was delivered to me, through 
the United ,8tates Mails, objections, in writing, by Raymond 
B. Bridgers, Esquire, Counsel for Jennie Burrus Stroebel, 
which objections I herewith attach to this, my Report. 

Dated: July 28th, 1942. 

HIRAM STEELl\IAN 
New Jersey Supreme Court 

Commissioner. 
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page 21 ~ State of New '1" er~ey 
' · Atlantie County, ss. 

Robert B. Cadwallader, of full age, being duly sworn ac­
cording tp law, 'QPPU hi§ oath, deposes and says:-

1~ I am~ Rell,l Estfl.te Broker of the State of New Jersey,. 
and also deal in securities. 

2. On or about October 6th, 19'38, I purchased twenty-five 
( 25) fµU:pa.id ~h~re~ of $to~k of the Equitable Building and 
Loan .A.ssocfatio:µ anp of the Peoples Building and Loan _As­
sociation, both of Atlantic City, in the name of Fred or 
J Emnie St:rn~b.el, a,n.d paid the ref or tµe $IDn of ,1,500.00. 

3. It is my personal recollection that fifteen (15) shares 
of this stock wer~ in, th~ People$ llqikJ.i11g a:nd J.ioan 4-ssocia­
tion and that ten (10) shares were in the' Equitable Building 
and Loan Association. 

4. The. prevailing price of this st90k at the tirqe of the 
purchase was approximately 30 cents on the· dollar. 

ROBERT B. CA;DWALLADER 

Sworn a~q Sµbsc.ribcq t.o before me t4is 28th day of Jµly, 
1942. . 

State of New Jer~~Y 
.Atlantic Cou~ty, ss. 

HIRAM STEELMAN 
Supreme Court Commissioner of N. J. · 

Walter P&rker, of full ~g~, being !f nly sworn according· to 
la~r, upo~ his oath, deposes ~nd says:-· 

1. I am the Secretary of the Peoples Building and Loan 
Associatio11, pf Atlantic City. 

page 22 ~ 2. Prior to Oct9.ber 6th, 19~8, there were1 ac-
. · cording to tpe bool{s of said Association? :fitteen 

(15) full-Pllid share~ of stock stanf].ing· in the 11am~ of Fred 
or Jennie Stroebel. The record discloses that said stock 
was ~qld on Qr ~bo-qt tliis date to Robert B. Cadwallader. 

3. The market yalue qf saiq stock at that time was ap­
proximately 30 cents on the dollar. 

WAL~RP~KER 
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Sworn and Subscribed to before me this 28th day of July, 
1942. 

HIRAM STEELMAN 
Supreme Court Commissioner of the 

State of New Jersey. 

:Mrs. Jennie Burrus Stroebel, Plaintiff 
v. 

'ressa Lewis, Executrix of the Estate of G. F. Stroebel, some­
times known as ,V. F . .Stroebel, Defendant. 

OBJECTIONS. 

Raymond B. Bridgers and V. H. Ke11am, counsel for Jennie 
Burrus Stroeble objects to the taking of the deposition in 
the above entitled cause pursuant to the attached notice, and 
for grounds for objectionR that the said notice. was not suf­
ficient in law as required in Section 62291 of the Code of Vir­
~inia, and the se.id J enuie Burrus Stroebel, being a non­
re~ident of the State of Virginia and having as her place of 
residence Burlington, the State of Iowa. 

Counsel for said objections to each and every person pro­
pounded and to the witnesses and each of them for the 
·· grounds thr.t the subject of this controversy is a 
page 23 ~ written n~reP.ment and that oral evidence is in-

missible to varv or contradict a written instru­
ment, and further grounds tl1at the agreement, the subject 
of this .controversy, is a contract between G. J. and Jennie 
Burrus Stroebel, that the said G. G. Stroebel made no objec­
tionR to said agreement in his lifetime and that now G . .B,. 
Stroebel being· dead, the executives cannot introduce any evi­
dence in an attempt to vary or contradict the agreement. 

And further objections that the said agreement the sub­
ject of this controversy, so far as Jennie Burrus Stroebel 
i!;; concerned wa~ ncvPr objec.ted to in the lifetime of G. J. 
Stroebel, and that it is now under the rules of equity G. ,1. 
Stroebel being dead the estate seeks alteration and changes 
in the aforesaid agreement. . 

And further. objections to each a~d every question pro­
ponnded to witnesses your complainant objects on the 
grounds that none of the witnesses know anything- pertain­
ing,· to the above referred to agTeement and that each ques­
tion is erevellant and improper. 

RAYiMOND B. BRIDGERS 
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NOTICE TO TAKE DEPOSITIONS. 

To : Jennie Burru~ Stroebel, 

TAKE NOTICE: That on the 28th day of July, 1942, at 
the, law offices of Harcourt and Steelman, Room 49 Real Es­
tate and Law Building, Atlantic City, New Jersey, between 
the hours of 9 :00 A. M. and 5 :00 P. M., I will proceed to take 
the depositions of James W. Cullen, Walter Parker, R. B. 
Cadwallader, and others, to be used as evidence in my be­
half, in a certain suit pending in the Circuit Court of the 
County of Princess .A.nnc, State of Virginia1 wherein I am 
the defendant and you are the complainant, and if for any 

cause the fa~.king of the said depositions be not 
page 24 ~ conuµenced, or if commenced, be not concluded on 

that d'ay: the taking thereof will be adjourned 
from day to day or from time to time, at the same place and 
between the same hours, until the same shall be compl~ted. 

TESSA LEWIS, 
Executrix of the Estate of G. F. 

Stroebel, sometimes known as 
W. F. Stroebel, 

By LOUIS B. FINE, 
Counsel 

Served tTuly 24 1942 at 10-10 A. M. 

" ; ! 

State of New Je:rsev 
County of Atlantlc, ss. 

Bv MR. CARMINE. 
- V. H.K. ' 

James W. Cullen, of full ag~, being· duly sworn accorc1ing 
tp law, upon his oath, deposes and says:-

1. I am the Secretary of the Equitable Building and Loan 
Association, of Atl~ntic City. 

2. Prior tq October 5th, 1938, there were according to th~ 
booltR of said .A-s~o~i~tion. ten (10) f1.dl-paiq shares of stoclr 
in said Associatio~ standing in the name of G. F. StroebeL. 
The record discloses that said stock was sold on or about. 
this date to Robert B. Cadwallader." · · 

R~ In 8;.ddition to the afores;iid stock, there were two and 
one-half ( 2.1/g) slmres of stock appearing on the books in 
the name of G. P. Stroebel. This stock, according to the 
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rec.ords of the Association is still in this name. A 
page 25 } request has been received to trailsf er this to the 

Executrix of the !Stroebel Estate. 
4. I have no knowledge of th~ value of the stock , at the 

time of said transfer and do not know for what price it was 
sold. 

JA.MES W. CULLEN. 
' 

Sworn and Subscribed to before. me this 28th day of July, 
194~. 

HIRAM STEELMAN 
Supreme Court Commissioner of the 

State of New Jersey. 

And on another day, to-wit: On the Both dav of July, 
1942, the following a.~swer was filed by the plaintiff: ,, . 

To the Honorable B. D. "\Vhite, Judge of the aforesaid court: 

Your petitioner· r~spectfully represents as follows: 

'rbe ~:p.swer of Jennie Burru~ 'Stroebel, or to so much 
therefore, ·as she advises that it is neGessary for her to an­
swer, to a petition filed in the abpve entitled cause, the de­
fendant answers and says. 

(1) ·T]1at it js true that it is pendh1g in ac.tion in the Cir­
cuit Court of the County of Pi:incess .1\.nne, between J ellD,ie 
BurruR .Stroebel, Plaintiff and Tessa Lewis, Defendant. 

(2) The plaintiff denies tl1e allegations contained in para­
grapl)A 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 and 8. 

The plaintiff al1e_qs that thiR matter, the subject of the ac­
tion at law is strictlv a matter to be decided on the law side 
of the court, and tha.t the said action should not be trans­

ferred to the equitv side as the defendant has a 
page 26} corqplete and 3:cleqliate re~edy at law. · 

That the clef endan,t is nqt entitled to equitable 
relief for the further reason that the defendant has been 
g11iltr of gross and indifferent negliance in setting up an 
equitable defense as when she has, and equity aids the dili­
~ent and not the indifferent. 

The said Jennie Burrµs Stroebel prays that the petition 
of said Tes~a Lewis be defied. 

JENNIE BUR:a,US STltOEBEL 
By Oounsel 
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And o~ another day, to-wit: On the 7th day of .A.ug11st,. 
1'942,. the following· order was entered: 

'rhis cause, which was transferred to the Chancery side 
of the Court upon the petition of the defendant, was again 
heard upon the papers formerly read und upon the answer 
and cross-bill of the defendant filed in this cause, and the 
answer to said cross-bill and replications to said answers, on 
the 27th day of July, 1942; upon testimony of witnesses 
taken in open Court; the depositions of witnesses, and was 
argued by counsel. Upon consideration whereof the Court. 
doth adjudge, order and decree that the defendant pay the 
Complainant the sum of Eleven Thousand Dollars, ,vith in­
terest thereon, from the 27 day of September, 1938, until 
paid, tog·ether with the cost. The Court doth further order 
and decree that the said Jennie Burrus Stroebel execute and 
deliver, within 30 days from the entry of this decree, to the­
Clerk of this Court a Deed for her interest in-certain prop-

erty in the State of New Jersey, at .A.tlantie City, 
page 27 r which said property is referred to in the contract 

between the said Jennie Burrus Stroebel and G. 
F. Stroebel. said deed to be made to G. F. Stroebel and to be 
with ~peciai warranty, and tha.t the Clerk shall hold the same 
and cle1iver the said deed to the defendant in this case or 
her .A.ttorney when the aforesaid judgment shall have been 
paid. 

And the defendant having expressed her intention of ap­
plying to the Supreme Court of Appeals for an appeal from 
this decree, the execution hereof is suspended for a period 
of sixty days from t11e entry hereof. 

page 28 ~ In the Circuit Court of Princess Anne County, 
Virginia. 

Mrs. ,Jennie Burrus Stroebel 
v. 

'ressa Lewis, Executrix of the Estate of G. F. Stroebel, some­
times known as vV. F. Stroebel. 

RECORD. 

Stenographic. report of all the testimony, to~ether with 
all the motions, objections and exceptions on the part of 
the respective parties, the action of the Court in respect 
thereto, and all other incidents of the trial of the cause of 
l\f rs. ~Tennie Burrus Stroebel v. Tessa Lewis, Executrix of 
the Estate of G. },. Stroebel, sometimes known as W. F. 
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•Stroebel, before Hon. B. D. White, Judge of the 28th Judi­
cial Circuit, pending in the Circuit Court of Princess Anne 
County, Virginia. 

Present: Messrs. Raymond B. Bridgers and V. Hope 
Kellam, Attorneys for the complainant. 

Mr. Louis B. Fine, Atto.rney for the defendant. 

Phlegar & Tilghman, 
Shorthand Reporters, 
Norfolk-Richmond, Va. 

Mr. Fine: If your Honor please, for the pur­
page 29 } poses of the record: I haYe n10v:ed time and again 

for a continuance on the ground that we have been 
unable to satisfactorily prepare the defense in this case and 
give the Court a review of the circumstances, and I want to 
state them as follows: 

There was a motion for a new trial in this case, which was 
pending in the .Circuit Court of Princess Anne County, which 
motion was set for July 1.5, 1942. That motion, as your Honor 
will recollect, was sustained without argument. I was not 
present. . 

On the 15th day of July your Honor transferred this cause 
to the equity side of the court, and definitely stated that this 
case would have to be tried on July 30th. 

At that time counsel for the complainant stated to the 
Court that he would accept service on the taking of deposi­
tions. We were not able to file our answer and cross-bill 
returnable for the same day. We have filed an answer and 
cross-bill asking for relief. That, if your Honor please, is 
returnable for the Rules in August. I have given my friends 

· a copy. · 
It does not seem proper, if your Honor please, that we 

should take two bites at the cherry when one full, adequate 
hearing would take care of it all. 

I have given my friends a copy of the answer and cross­
bill, and they stated that they would not be able 

page 30 } to take care of it. The answer and cross-bill are 
the outgrowth of this proceeding. 

·Secondly, they have objected to my taking the deposition 
in New Jersey. · 

The Court: Is it here! 
Mr. F'ine: It is in the papers, and it is here. 
Mr. Kellam: We accepted it-
Mr. Fine: (Interpo~ing·) I want to state another ground. 
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P. A. Agelasto, ,Tr. 

The Court: All right. 
Mr. Fine: They detinitely stated that they would accept 

service. I did not go to Atlantic City, but I retained coun­
sel in Atlantic City to take the deposition. They had an 
equal opportunity, and they knew exactly what I wanted to 
prove in Atlantic City. Certainly it was practically an im­
possibility to get to Iowa to ,examine this lady between July 
15 and July 30th. Frankly, I had a case in the Court of 
Law and Chancery of Norfolk, and, by accommodation of 
counsel, the case went over. 

Now, if your Honor please, on those grounds I would like 
to ask for a continuance. 

The Court: I think the motion should be overruled for this 
reason: The day you all were over here counsel accepted 
service, and I think that was predicated on the idea that the 

depositions should be taken at once. I think you 
page 31 } wanted to take a vacation in ·wisconsin, probably, 

or wherever it was. This case has been pending 
in this court for nearly two years, and possibly more, and 
I think it should be determined, regardless whether it is a 
law suit or a chancery suit, and your motion is overruled. 
You can make exception. 

Mr. :B-,ine: I except, if your Honor please. 
The Court: There are witnesses here who are busy, and 

want to get away. You can examine them. 

P. A. AGELASTO, JR., 
was then duly sworn : 

M:r. Fine : If your Honor please, in examining Mr. Agelasto 
I want to do so without waiving· my exceptions and my other 
motions in the case to quash the deposition of the complain­
ant herself. 

Also, if your Honor please, I want to make a motion· to 
strike the complainant's evidenc.e at the proper time because 
no case has been made. 

The Court: I understand you reserye all your rights. 

Examined by Mr. Fine: 
Q. You are Mr. P. A. Ag·elasto, are you noU 
A. That is correct. 
Q. Mr. Agelasto, you are a. practicing attorney in the City 

of Norfolk, are you not! 
A. Yes. · 
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P. A. Agelasto, Jr. 

Q. And you have offices associated with Mr. W. 
page 32 } R. Ashburn? 

A. That is correct. 
Q. You were present, were you not, at the sale of the as­

sets of the Stroebel estate, at London Bridge, were you not? 

Mr. Kellam: I object to that, if your Honor please. What 
relevancy has it to this case T 

The Court: I don't know. I will strike it out, if neces­
sary. 

Mr. Kellam: I object as irrelevant and immaterial. 
The Court: I overrule it at this time, but you can take 

it up later. 

A. I was at a place called Town Hall sometime in May, 
1940, at which a sale took place. 

By Mr. Fine: 
Q. And, at that time, you made representations that you 

represented Mrs. Stroebel, did you not? 
A. No, sir. I made no representation that I represented 

Mrs. Stroebel. I may have said I was there making an in­
vestigation on her behalf. 

Q. You were making an investigation on her behalf; is 
that correct? 

A. I was not employed by her. 
Q. But were you making an investigation on her behalf? 
A. No, sir. In order to cut the whole examination as short 

as possible, sometime during the month of May, I think around 
the middle of the month of May, Mr. S. J. Wood­

png·e 33 }- house requested that our office make some inves-
tigation in behalf of Mrs. Jennie Burrus. 

Q. Then it was Mr. S. J. Woodhouse-
A. (Interposing) As the result of that request,-
Q. Mr. Agelasto, I don't want to cut you off, but I would 

like for you to answer this: You went there at the sugges­
tion of Mr. S. J. Woodhouse; is that correct, 

A. At his request. 
Q. And you never did have any personal contact with Mrs. 

Stroebel? 
A. I did not even know Mrs. Stroebel. What I state ap­

plies also to· Mr. Ashburn. Mr. Woodhouse talked to Mr. 
Ashburn. 

Q. And you all were associated together, and Mr . .Ashburn 



34 Supreme Court of Appeals of Virginia 

P. A. Agelasto, Jr. , 

turned~ this matter over to you for investigation; is that cor­
rect f 

.A; ·I think that is correct. 
· Q. Did you, on behalf of Mr. Woodhouse or Mrs. Stroebel, 

make any claim· to me, as counsel for the estate, or to the 
executrix for any stock f 

A . .Carrying my answer to a question awhile ago, as the 
result of Mr. Woodhouse's request, we made a preliminary 
investigation of the situation as put up to us, which, as I re­
call, consisted mainly of determining what this sale was. As 

the result of that, we wrote to Mrs. Burrus­
page 34 ~ · Q. Mrs. Stroebel f 

A. Mrs. Burrus. 
Q. Jennie Burrus Stroebel Y 
.A. Jennie Burrus. 
Q. Her name is Stroebel. 
A. No; we wrote to Mrs. Jennie Burrus, whether her name 

was Stroebel, or not. We never received any-

The Court: (Interposing) Why don't yon let him answer 
the question? 

Mr. Fine: I want to bring out that Jennie Burrus is the 
same as Jennie Burrus Stroebel. 

·The Court: Do you know thaU 
Witness : :No, sir. 

By Mr. Fine: 
Q. Go ahead. · 
A. We wrote Jennie Burrus with respect to our prospec­

tive employment in her behalf, but we never heard anything 
from.her, and, accordingly, closed our files~ We never rep-
resented her. · 

Q. That is all you know about iU 
A. That covers everything I have before me. · · 
Q. Do yon have anything in your file with regard to stock Y 

Mr. Kellam : I move to strike the evidence. 
The Court: You object to all of it, I understand.· 

page 35 ~ I will pass on it later. If it is not relevant, I will 
rule it out, and, if it is relevant, it will stay in. 

A. Mr: F'ine, there is nothing in 1!1Y file relative to any 
stock wlnch I can find other than possibly the stock of a com­
pany called Wolf co Inc. 
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P . .A . .Agelast9, ,Jr. 

By Mr. Fine: 
Q~ There is nothing about any Building & Loan stock, is 

what I am speaking of? 
A. I don't know anything ~bout any Building & Loan 

stock. 
Q. You know nothi~g about it? 
A. No. 
Q. And when did you investigate thaU Will you give us 

the approximate date, please? 
A. Approximately ~~ring the mol)th of May, 1940. 
Q . .All right, sir. Off the r~cord-
A. It would be between the month of May and not later 

tllan J u.n~ 3, 1940. 

Mr. Fi~e: .A.11-swer the~e gentieiµen, l\fr. -;A.g·el~stp. 
Mr. Bridgers: I renew the motion to strike it froip. th~ 

record. -
The Court: It may be rei~vant later o~. J wiU pas_s on it 

later on. 
Mr. Bridgers: No questions. 

p~ge 36 ~ Mr. Fine: If your Honor please, I move to 
strike tl1e evidenc.e of tpe coip.plaina~t herself. 

Again, if your Honor please, I wonlq. Jj.ke to bri-11,g t.o the 
Court's attention the pleadings in the Cfl:Se, the bill of par­
ticulars, the grounds of defeps.e, so that your Honor will 
und.erstand this matter thoroughly, if I may. 

I will r~ad tho entire notice, aµ4 I will make it brief, hQt 
I do want to cover my point. and I think your Honor will 
agree wj.th the pef end ant iJ?, tl1is case when we get through. 

You need not- put this in the record, Mr. Phlegar. 

(Discussion and argumen~ off the record.) 

The Court: The motion is overruJed and exception noted. 
Mr. Fine: I save the point. · 
Mr. Kell~m: If your Honor ple~se, we ijsked for grounds 

of defense, which, we think, were ;nev,er :filed. 
The Court: Have you any 0th.er evidence to introduce Y 
Mr. Bridgers: We want t,q intro~µce one witn.ess. 
Mr. Fine: Wait a minute. If your Honor please, my 

friend says that he doesn't have· the grounds of defense in 
this case: As a matter of fact, we have stated to them orallv 
anr1 "Qled an answer and cross-bill in this case on July 25, 
and I gave you a copy of it. You came to my office~ 
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Mr. Bridgers: I didn't know that it was filed. 
The Court: What is vour contention on that f 

page 37 ~ Mr. Fine: If my friend is taken by surprise in. 
this case, I will be glad to join in a motion for a 

continuance. 
Mr. Bridgers: Nothing surprises me in this case. 
The Court: All right. Is there any other testimony? 
Mr. Kellam: I don't know that we have any testimony 

as to the value of the property. 
The Court: Mark this contract as an exhibit. 

(The document referred to was filed as "Exhibit No. 1, 
July 30, 1942", and is as follows: 

''THIS AGREEMENT, Made and entered into by and be­
tween G. F. STROBEL, of the City of Norfolk, State of 
Virginia, party of the first part, and JEN-NIE B. STROBEL, 
·of the City and State aforesaid, party of the second part. 

"WHEREAS, the said parties hereto are husband and. 
wife; and, 

"WHEREAS, there is now depending in the Circuit Court 
of the City of Norfolk, Virg·inia, divorce proceedings be­
tween the said parties which have not yet been adjudicated 
and determined; and, · 

"WHEREAS, the said parties hereto desire to contract 
and agree, subject to confirmation of said Court in said 
proceedings as to a division of their property rights; 

"NOJV, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises 
and other good and valuable consideration to each of the 
parties and the mutual covenants and agreements herein con­
tained, the said party of the first part agrees that the said 
party of the second part is to have and receive .by proper deed 
of conveyance, to be executed and delivered by him to the 
said party of the second part, title to property hereto£ ore oc-

cupied by the parties hereto as a home designated, 
page 38 ~ according to the present system of numbering 

houses in the City of Norfolk, Virg·inia, as 5226 
Rolfe Avenue, subject to a deed of trust thereon securing 
a balance of principal of $3,000.00; that the said party of the 

. first part, in consideration of this agreement of settlement, 
cancels his claim to a certain note evidencing a loan to a 
brother of the said party of the second part in the principal 
sum of $1,000.00, as well as to all accrued interest thereon; 
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that the said party of the second part is to have outright 
.and as her own property all of the household effects and fur­
nishings in said property designated as 5226 Rolfe .Avenue, 
with the exception of all furniture and effects in the room 
heretofore occupied by the said party of the first part, to­
gether with one new bed and new dresser, also two chairs 
now in the living· room of said house and two runners ; a cedar 
.chest, all books, and certain garden tools which are to be 
the properties in fee of the said party of the first part. 

·'The said parties hereto further agree that certain real 
properties designated as 1101 South Third Street, Burling­
ton, Iowa, now jointly owned by said parties hereto are to be 
sold, and out of the proceeds therefrom the said party of 
the first part is to pay the said party of the second part the 
sum of $1;000.00 in cash. 

"It is further agreed that the said party of the second 
part is to receive one thousand shares of .the capital stock 
of the Peoples Building and Loan Association of Atlantic 
City, New Jersey, owned by them. -

''The said party of the second part covenants and agrees 
that the said party of the first part is to have as his indi­
vidual property, in fee, properties designated as 113 North 
Delavan Avenue, Atlantic City, New Jersey, together with 
one additional lot located in said City. 

"It is further understood and agreed that the said party 
of the first part is to pay taxes for the year 1938 on the­
property designated as 5226 Rolfe A venue, and_ the said party 
of the second part is to pay all taxes, together with any un-

paid repair bills for the year 1938 on the property 
page 39 }- designated as 1101 South Third ,Street, Burlington, 

Iowa. 
"It is the mutual understanding and agreement of the par­

ties hereto that, subject to confirmation by the Circuit Court 
of the .City of Norfolk of this agreement, and to be deter­
mined by the laws governing such matters, the said parties 
hereto covenant and agree the one with the other that they 
relinquish all rights, title and interest or claims whatsoever 
bv virtue of the estate of curtesy or dower in and to the re­
spective properties of the parties hereto, or of any other 
properties which either may acquire in the future. 

"WITNESS the following signatures and seals this 27th 
clay of September, in the year 1938. 

G. F. STROEBEL 
JE,NNIE B. STROEBEL 

(Seal) 
(Seal)'' 
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JORN P. DE~ER,. 
having been first duly swqrn, testified as. follows .. 

Ex~!Jli:q_ed by M:r. Bridgers : 
Q. P:l~ase, st~te your namef 
.A.· John P. Dekker. 
Q. Wlifit 1s you! occupati911, Mr. Dekkerf 
.A. Broker-inve~tn;ient broke:r. 

The Court: vVheref 
Witness··: In Norfolk. 

By ¥r. Briqge:rs; . 
Q . .Are you familiar with the valu<3 of the stock of Peoples 

B11-ilding & Loan Association of Atlantic City, New 
page 49 } J ~rsey f 

A. As of what time t 
Q. As of today! · · · ... · · 
A. Ye$. 
Q! What is its market valuef 

¥r. ;Fine: I object. 
The ·court: Overruled. 
l\.;[r. Fine: Exception. 

k. Thirty ce~ts on the dollar! 

By Mr. Bridgers; 
Q. Pid you have occasion to a_sk for ~ quotation on any 

stock supposedly owned by G. F. Stroebel 7 
A. It was tol4 me that it belonged to Stroebel. 

Mr~ Fine: I object. 
Witness : I was asked, about tw9 ye~rs ago, by a gentleman 

connected with Abbott, Proctor & Paine, Norfolk City, to 
get a quotation on Peoples Building ~ Loan Association, of 
Atlantic City, New Jersey, and I g·aye their .quotation. 

By the Court : 
Q. What is it Y 
.A.. Thirty ce.nts on the dollar, the ~ame as today. It has 

not changed at all. 

Mr. Bridgers: Answer Mr. Fine. 
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John P. Dekker. 

CROSS EXAl\UNATION. 

By Mr. Fine: 
Q. Yon, yourself, don't know anything about 

page 41 ~ the value of Peoples Building & Loan Association 
stock, or do you? 

. A. I know it from the officers tl1einselves. 
Q. Have you ever sold a11y Peoples Building & Loan As­

sociation stock 7 
A. No; but it doesn't make any difference; I was only ask­

ing-
Q. I didn't ask you that, but do you know anything about · 

the value of it Y · 
A. I do not, because in our prof cssion, when we ask for 

a bid, we take the officers' statements. 
Q. When you sa.y the value of this Building & Loan Asso­

dation stock was thirty cents on the dollar, you base that on 
what the officers of the company told you? · 

A. The market value. I didn't only ask the officers of the 
company .. 

Q. Whom did you ask? 
.A. I went through a New Y o.rk and a Philadelphia con-

cern. 
Q. What concern. did you ask the value of it? 
A. West & Company, in Philadelphia. 
Q. When did you contact West & Company, of Philadel-

phia? 
A. That was about two years ago. 
Q. Is that when you contacted them T 
A. Yes; that is right. I had never sold it and had never 

bought it-at the time; I just asked for them to make a quo­
tation. 

pag-e 42 ~ Q. For whom did you ask that 7 
A. I asked it for Mr. Bud Wales. His name is 

W. H., I believe. He lived at the Beach, and, at that time, 
he was connected not with Abbott, Proctor & Paine, but with 
Dyer, Hudson & Company. 

Q. Do you know whether this was pref erred stock, or 
whether it was common stock, of the Peoples Building & Loan 
Association Y 

A. I can only say the capital !-;tock-the common stock. 
Q. Do you know whether it was capital stock, or Building 

& Loan running stock? There are three kinds. 
A. I asked for common stock. 
Q. You didn't ask for running stock? 
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A. No. 
Q. Didn't you ask for Mr. Stroebel? 
A. No, sir. 
Q. And that was about two years ago f 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. That would be in 1939, would it? 
A. I think in that neighborhood. I don't know exactly the 

date, because those things come and go. It was around Sep­
tember. 

Q. Have you learned anything about the value of the stock 
. today? 

A. Yes. 
page 43 ~ Q. Where did yon make inquiry about the stock? 

A. Today? 
Q. Yes, or yesterday-? 
A. I called them up this morning. 
Q. Whom did you call up this morning? 
A. The officers of the company-the Peoples Building & 

Loan Association. 
Q. With whom did you talk:Y 
A. I talked to the secretary, a lady, and she told me this­

you asked the question, and let me explain; I have nothing 
to . hide. She told me the stock has not changed in market 
value. The company is in liquidation, a different organiza­
tion in the town; Building & Loan Association combined in 
order to get the stockholders to agree to take a certain 
amount of their stock now, and later on liquidate it as the 
company progressed. That has not been accomplished, and . 
the stock has still sold at thirty cents on the dollar. 

Q. Did she tell you it was worth thirty cents on the dollar 
today? 

A. Yes. 
Q. She told you it is worth that today? 
A. Yes. 
Q. That is all the information you have? 
A. All I know and all I care to know. If people come to 

me for a quotation, I try to give it right. 
page 44 ~ Q. In other words, you base your testimony on 

your conversation with West & Company, whicI1 
was about two years ago? 

A. That is right. 
Q. And one telephone conversation this morning? 
A. That is alI. 
Q. How many shares are involved? 
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A. I understood, at the time Mr. Wales told me, there 
were a thousand shares. 

Q. Mr. Wales told you there were a thousand shares t 
A. Yes. 
Q. At that time? 
A. Yes. 
Q. You don't know for certain? 
A. I have not seen the stock? 
Q. Why did Mr. Wales contact you about that! 

Mr. Bridgers: I object to that. 
The Court: The objection sustained. 

By Mr. Fine: 
Q. So you have no personal knowledge of the value-

The Court: (Interposing) He has already answered the 
question, Mr. Fine. He has answered it three times, really. 
All right; you can go. 

Mr. Fine : I move to dismiss the complainant's testimony 
again on the ground that it is not corroborated-

The Court: You move to strike? 
page 45 } Mr. Fine: Yes, sir; to strike on the ground that 

it is not corroborated under the statute; (2) it is 
purely speculative; (3) there is no testimony that they own 
it jointly pursuant to that agreement, or that the agreement 
was ever confirmed; and ( 4) it is a guess. 

The Court: I overrule the motion, to which action of the 
Court you except. 

Mr. Fine: Yes, sir. 

RALPH H. DAUGHTON, 
having been first duly sworn, testified as follows: 

Examined by Mr. Fine : 
Q. You are ,Senator Ralph H. Daughton, and you are a 

practicing attorney of the City of Norfolk, are you not? 
A. That is correct. · 
Q. How long have you been practicing! 
A. Since 1911. 
Q. Senator, I believe you were counsel for G. F. Stroebel 

in his lifetime? 
A. That is correct. 
Q. And you instituted a divorce suit in his behalf in the 
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Circuit Court of the City of Norfolk on January 17, 1938, 
did you not? 1 

k. I don't recall the date. 

p·age· 46 t Mr. Kellam: If ·your Honor please, the record 
· speaks for itself. 
Witness: The decree was entered, as I recall, in 1939. 

By Mr. Fine·: . 
Q. Senator, I hand yon an agreement dated 27th day of SeJ]J­

tember, 1938, between G. F. Stroebel and Jennie Burrus 
Stroebel; was that contract ever confirmed-

The Court: The record will show. 

By ~fr. Fine: 
· Q. ( Continuing) -confirmed by the Circuit Court of the 

City of Norfolk. 

Mr. Kellam: I do :qot think that question is proper. 

A. As I recall, and I think my recollection is correct, this 
did ·not enter into the divorce proceedings in any way, shape, 
form or fashion; it was a property settlement effected be­
tween the parties. I think Alf red Anderson represented 
Mrs. Strobel, and both of them were in their seventies. I 
know that he tried and I tried to effect a reconciliation be-. 
cause of the ages of the parties. The. case dragged on and 
dragged out, and it was a most peculiar case. 

By the Court: 
Q. How old was he f 
A. Eith.er sixty-nine or seventy. 
Q. It is in testimony that she was seventy-five. 

A. They were both in their seventies, as I re­
page 47 } call. They were mismated. She was his second 

wife. 

By Mr. Fine: 
· Q. When this decree was entered in the case, was there any 
claim by Mr . .Stroebel, or her counsel, of any property due 
them?· 

A. No, there was not, except some discussion. as there al­
ways is, about some trivial matter. I think Mr. ·Stroebel 
spent hours talldng about an absfritse Mrs. Stroebel had 
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·stolen, which she refused to return, a little piece of jewelry 
which belonged io the first Mi-s. Stroebel. . 

Q. Of course when this decree was entered by Judge 
Hanckel, it was endorsed by her lawyer, Mr. Alfred Ander­
son? 

A. That is correct. 

Mr. Fme: I would like to introduce it with leave to with­
draw it. 

The Court: If you want to make the record up. 
Witness: I think I have the original decree, which was in 

my file. 
Mr. Fine: Fine. I would like to introduce it. 
The Court:· That is all right. 

(The document referred to was filed marked "Exhibit No. 
2, July 30, 1942", and is as follows: 

'~ Virginia : 

"In the Circuit Court of the City of Norfolk, on the 4th 
day of December, in the year, 1939. 

page 48 ~ "G. F. Stroebel, Complainant, 
v. 

Jennie B. Stroebel, Defendant. 

IN CHANCERY. 

'' This cause came on this day to be heard upon the com­
plainant's bill, and the depositions taken before a Notary 
Public and filed on behalf of the complainant, and was argued 
by counsel. . 

"On colisicJeration whereof, it appearing· to the Court that 
process in this suit was reg'tllarly served on the said defend­
ant by an officer authorized to serve the same, and it further 
appearing. to the Court, independently of the admissions of 
either party in the pleading's or otherwise, that the said par­
ties were lawfully married on the 14th day of September, 
1916, and are of the white race; that the said defendant did, 
in the spring of 1934, wilfully, voluntarily and without justi­
fication desert the said complainant, and that the said de­
sertion has been continuous and uninterrupted for a period 
of more than twq years next prior to the commencement of 
this suit; that the said defendant is domiciled in, and is, and 
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has been an actual bona fide resident of the City of Norfolk,. 
and State of Virginia, for at least one year next preceding 
the commencement of this suit. 

'' The Court doth adjudge, order and decree that the said 
:G. F. Stroebel be and he is hereby g·ranted a divorce a vinculo 
matrimonii from the said Jennie B. Stroebel. 

'' And nothing further to be done it is ordered that this 
cause be removed from the docket. 

'' A Copy, Teste: 

·CE.OIL M. ROBERTSON, Clerk. 
"By W. R. HANCKEL, D. O. 

"RALPH H. DAUGHTON, p. q.'' 

Witness : This case was drawn out and dragged out; there 
was some property here and some in Iowa, some in Atlantic 

City and some building stock; a little was owned 
pag·e 49 ~ by Fred Stroebel and some jointly by Fred Stroe­

bel and his wife. She said that she had been in 
the office of the Building & Loan and put her name on it 
without his consent. 

The Court: Yon don't know anything about how much it 
was? · 

Witness: .No; but she got the majority of that Fred Stroe­
bel had, and wanted to get out of the picture. 

By Mr. Fine: 
Q. Did he ever own a thousand shares of Building & Loan 

Association stock, either personally or jointly? 
A. Fred Stroebel was not a wealthy man; I came in con­

tact with him by being· attorney for the Southern Brewing· 
Company; he was brew master for the Southern Brewery. 

By the Court: 
Q. Do yon know how much there was of this Building & 

Loan Association stock? 

Witness: No; but I am positive there was not a thousand· 
dollars of stock. 

By Mr. Fine: 
Q. Senator, I believe you stated you. are almost positive 
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he never had a thousand shares of Building & Loan Associa­
tion stockf 

A. I was intimately acquainted with :M:r. Stroebel; he had 
been in my office quite frequently-

Mr. Kellam: We object unless he knows. 
The Court: You don't know how much he had T 

Witness: No; but my recollection is that it was 
page 50 ~ not near that amount. 

By Mr. Fine: 
Q. That would make him worth nearly $100,000; he was 

not worth that, was he 1 
A. No. I think Stroebel only had an equity in his home 

ove1· in Edgewater. The home here in Norfolk went to his 
wife. 

Q. His wife got the home at Edgewater in settlemenU 
A. Yes. 
Q. The decree entered the 4th of December, 1939-was 

there anything that she got in it V 
A. No. There was no alimony there. 

The Court: The decree speaks for itself. 

By Mr. Fine: 
Q. Did Mrs. Stroebel or Mr. Alfred Anderson, her attor­

ney, ever come to you and ask for anything else in this case! 
A. Neither one of them. Mrs. Stroebel frequently visited 

my office and complained of Mr. Stroebel. There w.as never 
miy demand by Mrs. Stroebel on me for anything. 

Q. Yv ns there any dispute about this property, when this 
decree was entered, December 4, 1939! 

A. No. 
Q. Wasn't there, as a matter of fact, a prior agreement 

to this one between the parties 1 
A. Yes. 

Mr. Bridgers: I object to a prior agreement. 
Mr. Fine: They had several ag-reements, if your 

page 51 ~ Honor please, and all of them were concluded be­
£ore tMs decree was entered in December, 1939. · 

. l\f r. Bridgers: I object. 
'The Court: Mr. Fine wants to g·et it into the record. The 

Court sustains the objection. 
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Witness : Am I to answer it t 
· The Court : For the purposes of the re·cord. 

Witness: There was an agreement covering alimony, and 
that was in 193·1. 

Mr. Fine: I would like to introduce it for the purpose of 
the exception. 

Mr. Bridgers, We object. 
Thq Court: tt is £or the purpose of getting it into the 

record. 

(The paper referred to was filed marked "Exhibit No. 3, 
July 30, 1942", and is as follows:) 

"THIS AGREEMENT, Made and entered into this 9th 
d1:,ty of July, l!J~7, .between FREDIDRIOK G. STROBEL and 
JIDNNiln B. STROBEL, husband and wife, of Norfolk, Vir­
ginia. 

"WITNESSETH: That.for reasons known to themselves, 
not necessary to be stated . herein, the said parties hereto 
agree to temporarily separate, that is to say, the said JEN~ 
NIE B. STROBEL agrees to promptly, as soon as the said 
FREDERICK G. STROBEL provides the necessary trans­
portation expenses, to go and visit with her people in Bur­
lington, Iowa, and other places, for a period of ·at least six 
i;no~ths, and. l~nger if she so decides, and the said FRED­
ERICK G. STROBEL does. now deposit wit~ Alfred An­
derson, Attorney f <?r the said JENNIE. B. STROBEL the 

. suni ~f $50.00 for travelling expenses for the said 
page 52 ~ JENNIE B. STROBF.ili to Burlington, Iowa;. and 
. does ~gree to pay to the saicJ JENNIE B. STRO-
BEL the sum of $60.00 per month, beginning on ·the 1st day 
of August, 1937, and to continue during her visit, and fur­
ther agrees, upon her return, that he is to pay to the said 
JEiNNIE B .. STROBEL the sum of $40.00 per month for 
her use and benefit, with the understanding that the two of 
them will either live together in :peace, or else the said par­
ties will permanently separate, and either or both will be free 
to apply to .a court for divo:rce. 

'' And with the further understanding that the said JE:N­
NlE B. STROBEL will deliver to th~ said FREDElUCK 
G. STROBEL his diamond stud which she had and certain 
Building and Loan · papers and all other papers which she 
has in her custody and which belong to him~ 
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'' It is further understood that the said parties hereto 
agree to convey to 0. M. Burruss, or to whomsoever he may 
direct, the Burlington, Iowa, 'property belonging to them 
jointly, and to divide equally between them the net proceeds 
therefrom. 

'' It is, further agreed that when the said JENNIE B. 
STROBEL leaves she shall have the right to ,close and lock 
her room, and that said room, nor any of her personal effects 
left therein, shall be opened or disturbed in any manner by 
the said FREDERICK G. STROBEL, or by any one under 
his direction, or request. 

"WIT.NESS the following signatures and seals: 

FREDERICK G. STROEBEL 
JE!NNIE B. STROEBEL 

(.Seal) 
(Seal) 'r 

If my recollection is correct, that agTeement was prepared 
in the office of Alf red Anderson. 

By Mr. Fine: 
Q. Can you state with certainty that all matters had been 

settled between the parties when this decree was entered T 
A. Absolutely. 

page 5,3 ~ Q. w·as that guess, or speculation, or positive 
assurancei 

A. There is no guess or speculation. I lived through it 
three or four years, and when this decree was entered we 
kuew it uutif Mr. Stroebel died. He would come in to see 
about making a will, but it was never made. I have no other 
paper. 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

By Mr. Kellam : . 
Q. I understand from you that the agreement between Jen­

nie Burrus Stroebel and G. F. Stroebel, in reference to their 
property rig·hts, is comprised in the paper copy or original 
of which was handed to you; is that correct? 

A. I didn't read the original. 
Q. Will you read it1 

. The Court: . Did you ever see the contract Y 
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By Mr. Kellam: 
Q. That is Mr. Stroebel 's signature, is it not? 
A. Yes, sir. I saw it at the time, if your Honor please,, 

but a lot of water has gone over the dam? 
Q. That was the agreement to settle their pr~perty rights; 

is that correcU 
A. Yes. 
Q. And you don't know whether the terms of that agree­

ment and its provisions have been carried out since, do you Y 

Mr. Fine: He has answered it 
page 54 ~ · Mr. Kellam: I don't think he has. 

A. I will say this, that Mrs. Strobel was represented by 
very able counsel. 

By Mr. Kellam: 
Q. Was Mr. Stroebel? 
A. I thank you. I represented Frederick Stroebel, and, 

at the time this divorce decree was entered, Alfred Ander­
son was satisfied everything· had been done as called for in 
that agreement; otherwise, the decree would not have been 
entered .. It does not call for alimony. I have no personal 
feeling in this matter; I felt very friendly towards Mrs~ 
Stroebel. 

Q. You don't know, do you, I presume, whether, at the 
time this agreement was signed and the decree entered, the 
property in the City of Norfolk had been sold? 

A. At the time that-
Q. At the time the agreement was entered into and the de­

cree signed Y 
A. No; I would not say that. 
Q. You don't know whether the Burlington, Iowa, property 

had been disposed of, do you Y 
A. No. 

Mr. Fine: I raise the objection that the property in Nor­
folk had been conveyed. 

The Court: That is not the question. He asked if_ he knew,. 
and he said no. 

Witness: Repeat the question. 

page 55 ~ ·By Mr. Kellam: 
Q. Do you know whether, at the time the decree­

was entered, the ,Norfolk property had been sold and the 
Burlington, Iowa, property had been sold Y 
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.A. No. At the time the decree was entered my hands were 
washed of the whole affair. This agreement was entered 
into sometime prior to that. Whether Fred Stroebel and Mrs. 
Stroebel joined in a deed and they sold it and she got it, or 
whether they split it up, I don't know, but I know that these 
were the terms agreed upon, and I know there was no ali-
mony agreed upon. · 

Mr. Fine: For the purposes of the record and for the en­
lig·htenment of the Court, the properties had been trans- · 
ferred, and we can stipulate that. 

Mr. Kellam: Hold on, now. 
Mr. Bridgers: There is no evidence of that. 
l\Ir. Fine: My friends are blowing hot and cold, and I 

don't think that they ought to do it,and here is what I mean 
by that: In the notice of motion they claim there is a thou­
sand dollars not turned over to Mrs. Stroebel, and then they 

. come and say, yes it has already been turned over; thirdly, 
they say the contract had been complied with in all respects. 
My notice is for the purposes o:f the record-

The Court: (Interposing) What is the motion? I didn't 
catch exactly what you are getting at. Are you 

page 56 ~ willing to strike the evidence as to that? 
Mr. Fine : I am asking the Court to do this­

The Court: Are you through with Mr. Daughton f 
Mr. Fine: One more question. 
The Court : Ask the question, ancl get through with him. 

I want to get rid of it. It is a hot day. Are you gentlemen 
through? 

·Mr. Kellam: Yes, sir. 

By Mr. Fine: 
Q. I believe you say that all property rig·hts had been de-

termined as of that time? 

The Court: Yes; he stated that. 
M:r. Fine: All right. 

The Court: Is there any other testimony? 
Mr. Fine: Yes, sir; a lot of it. Leaving off the family 

part of it-
Mr. Kellam: (Interposing) Before you leave that, we 

want to object to the introduction of that testimony. Our 
motion is based upon ,Section 6229 of the Code, and I would 
like to see if we can find the original of those depositions, 
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}fr. Fit1e. (Mr Kelbtm read S~ctioI1 6229 of tbe Code.) At­
tached to the de ositioµ is copy of a notice that was served on ine iu~· one of c usel, on July 24, 1942, at 10 :10 A. M. 

M . Fine: And we took them on the 28th-five 
page o7 ~ clays. late.r~ · · · 
· · Mr. Kellam: ,v o wrote to the attornevs who 

. were supposed to take them, and immediately. dispatched 
to the attorney this letter; 

'' Raymond :a. Bridgers ancl V ~ H. Kell~m, cou:µsel for 
Jennie Burrus Stroebel, object to the taking of the deposi­
tion in the abC>'ve entitled cause pursuant to the attached 
notice, and forigrounds for objections that the said notice 
was not sufficie t in law: as required in Section 6229 of the 
Co.de .of Vi.rgi:µi , an. d t.he. said. Jennie ::aurrus Stroeb. el, being 
a non-resident .f the State of Virginia and having as her 
place of reside~e Burlington, the State 0£ Iowa. 

'' Counsel for saicl. objectio:u.s to each a.nd every person 
propounded an · tQ the witnesses and each of them on the 
gro. unds tha . .t t.' .~ . s.ubj. ec . .t .. o~ .. this ~on tr.ov?rS.Y. i. s a written 
ag-reem~nt and, hat oral ev1denGe 1s adm,tssible to vary or 
contradict a wi·tten instrument, a:,;id furth~:r grounds that 
the agreement, he subject of this controversy, is a contract 
between G. J. a d Jennie Burrus Str9ebel, that the said G. 
J. Stroebel ma!. e no objeGt.io:Q~ to said agreement in his 
lifetime and th now G. F. Stroebel being dead, the execu­
tives cannot int oduce any evidence in an a,.ttempt to vary 
or contradict th agreement. · 

'' And further objections that the said agTeem~nt the sub­
ject of this con roversy, so far as Jennie Burrus Stroebel 
is concerned, w s never objected to in the lifetime of G. J. 
Stroebel, and t t it i,s :,;iow under the :rules of equity G. J. 
Stroebel being ead the estate seeks alte:r;-ation and changes 
in the afore said agreement. · · 

'' And further objectio:Qs to Q~ch and every question pro­
pounded to witpesses your complainant qbjects on the 
grounds that nore of the witnesses know anything pertain­
i~g t? t~e abov~ ref err~d to agreelllent and that each ques­
tion 1s ~rreleva t and improper~'' · 

If our llono:r please, I do not think, with all 
page 58 ~ due r spect to the ability of my friend on the op­
. posit side, if you elimfoate entirely the question 
of agreement to acGept, that the:re is al\y question about the 
notice being so hort that you can send a letter by ordinary 
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course of mail and get a reply. (lVIr. Kellam furth~r ar­
gued.). 

Mr. Fine: Your Honor set this case definitely on the 30th 
of July if counsel would accept service. To accept service, 
as I understand, is not that you wait any definite time. I 
called Mr. Bridgers on the 23rd and asked if he would a~oopt 
service, and he said "That will not suit me." I said, ''I 
will haV'e to ask for a continuance,'' and he said that he 
would object. The case was set for the 30th, and they were 
taken on the 28th and were in the, Clerk's Office on the 29th. 

I did not know any .counsel in Atlantic City, but I got the 
name out of Martindale. Thev could have done the Samo 
thing·. The Code say1s, if your· Honor pleaBe, if papers are 
served, you should have opportunity to mail from one place 
to another, and there was plenty of time to do it in five days. 
I gave six days. . 

"\Vhat I prove by the depositions is that they never had a 
thousand shares of stock. _ 

I know that vour Honor is sitting as a chancellor in the 
case, .. and I am represent1ng a dead man and he 

page 59· }- cannot talk. 
If your Honor says that this is not proper tes­

t.imony, you can g·ive them the right to cross-examine later. 
These people are disinterested, and are not here at all. 

I want to read the testimonv to show the facts. 
Mr. Kellam: Before he reads the testimony, I would like 

to be heard on another question. . 
Mr. Fine: . Let me finish my arg-ument. On page 3 is the 

testimony of Robert B. Cadwallader; it is in three sections: 

"(1) I am a real estate broker of the State of New Jersey, 
and also deal in securities. 

"(2) On or about Oct9ber 6, 1938, I purchased 25 full­
paid shares of stock of the Equitable Building & Loan As­
sociation and of the Peoples Building & Loan Association, 
both of Atlantic City, in the name of Fred or Jennie Stroebel, 
and paid, the ref or the sum of $i,5oo.oo. 

'' (3) .It is my personal recollection that fifteen shares of 
this stock were in the Peoples Building & Loan Associ~tion 
and that ten shares were in the Equitable Building & Loan 
Assofiation. 

" ( 4) The prevailing· price of this stock at the time of 
the purchase was approximately thirty cents on t~e dollar.'' 
· Those are the facts in this case, and there is nobody hurt 
by it. 

The Court: I do not think the depositions can be read 
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or heard by the Court. I have heard them and I have read 
them, as a matter of fact. I sustain the motion 

pag·e 60 ~ of th complainant to strike them out. You can 
excep. 

Mr. Fine: I m placed in a most particularly bad posi­
tion about beiu. forced into the trial of this case. I was 
told by counsel hat they ,yould accept service. 

'rhe Court: ou have already stated that, Mr. Fine. 
Mr. l,ine : If your Honor please, I subpoenaed here to­

day Mr. Russell Bradford, who was also counsel in the case 
and was counse' for :Ofrs. Jennie Burrus Stroebel, who 
definitely stated what she claimed before this big fraudulent 
(I claim) suit "as filed. He was notified to come here; he 
had a case or stit in Suffolk, and he stated that he would 
get here as quicltly as he could. However, I can state what 
I want to prove y Mr. Bradford, and, if they want to agTee 
to it, we can pr ceed. 

Mr. Kellam: id you have a subpoena for him! 
Mr. Fine : I asked for a subpoena in five days. Have 

you the papers¥ 
The Court: I haven't got them. 
Mr. Fine : '' Jjuly 24.' ' 
The Court: For the · sake of the record, ~tate what you 

expect to prove ~~t him. 
l\fr. Kellam: OCf your Hono_r please, we asked for grounds 

of defenRc; so f r as we know, they were never filed until 
the a ~wer and cross-bill in another proceeding 

page 61 r was :fi ed. If my friend is trying to rely 011 either 
a mis ake or fraud in this ease to contradict or 

set out in full i I any pleading not only that the subject of 
the controversy Tas fraudulent, but have to allege what that 
:fraud consisted f, and, in this particular case, so far as I 
know, there is io allegation, nothing filed in the original 
action as grounqs of defense, which would give us any in­
ti..111ation that th;, defendant expected to rely on fraud, and 
certainly did nollt set out with any particularity what the 
fraud consisted f. · 

The same thin · would apply, but not as strongly, in case 
of mistake. If quity is asked to intervene on the ground 
that there has Heen a mistake and an action at law would 
lJe inadequate, t en certainly something· in there must give 
the complainant otice of what defense, or items of defense, 
they expect to s t up. 

\Vlicn your H nor was asked to remove this case, here 
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There is nothing in there that the agreement sliould be re­
formed. 

The Court: Is that the gTound of defense t 
Mr. Kellam~ That is llis petition for removal. I can't 

find the grounds of defense. There is an answ-er and cross­
bill filed in the Circuit Court of Princess Anne 

page 62 } County on the 25th of July, 1942. 
The Courf: Let us see what the testimony is. 

What do you expect to prove by Mr. Bradford7 
Mr. Fine: That Mr. Bradford wrote a letter to Mrs. 

Tessa Lewis, the executrix of this estate, which letter we 
will introduce in evidence, asking the executrix to come in 
to see about the matter. That letter was ref erred to Mrs. 
Lewis' counsel, and I talked with Mr. Bradford, who in­
formed me that he had had a claim on behalf of Mrs. Jennie 
Bunrus Stroebel, the complainant in this case-not for one 
thousand shares of stock but for two and a half shares of 
stock, and here is the letter that was addressed to him from 
the nephew of Mrs. Stroebel. I will read it-

The Court: A.re you going to put it into the record Y 
Mr. Fine: Yes, sir~ 
i\fr. Kellam: vVe object to the reading of the letter. 
The Court: It doesn't bind you. Let it go into the ree­

orcl. Is that Mr. Bradford's letter¥ 
Mr. Fine: Yes, sir; I have it. (Reading) : 

"Burlington, Iowa, March 5, 1940 .. 

"''Mr. A. F. Anderson, 
National Bank of Commerce Building, 
Norfolk, Virginia. 

''Dear Sir: 
'' I am enclosing· an assignment for transfer of' 

page 63 } stock on the c.ompany books which it will be neces-
sary to have the administratrix sign before they 

will trans£ er the stock on the books of the company. This 
stock was given to her (my aunt Mrs. Stroebel) before her 
hmihand 's death and was in both their names. The stock 
iR in her possession also. Would you please see if the Tess[J. 
.T. Lewis mentioned will sign the enclosed paper, and return 
same to me. Whatever the charge is you may also send to 
me. If you are unable to secure the signature, will you 
please return the papers to me. 

''Yours truly, 

N. O. BURRUS.'' 
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(By Mr. Fi.n ), Also·. a letter from the National Bank of 
Burlipgton,·dat d Maren 1, 1940-

The Court: here is no testimony as to the relationship. 
::M:r. Fine: I ~ill be glad to have him here. 
The Court: o ahead and read it. 
:M:r. :B.,ine : ( eading) 

''Mr. Norman . Bt1crns 
1816 Louisa St eet 
Burlington, Io· 

'' Dear. Mr. Bur tts : 

"Burlin~·ton, Iowa, 
"March 1, 1940 

''We are tod .. in receipt of assignment covering ·transfer 
of stock from t e estate of George Frederick Stroebel, de­
ceased to Jenni Louise Stroebel. 

"It will be n cessarv that the administratrix of this es­
tate sign this. ssignment and if you care to drop in the 
bank aud pirk p the assignment for the signature, we will 
hold same here or yon. 

page 64 ~ '' Very truly yours, 

THOMAS L. DYER 
Cashier.,,.. 

Mr. Fine: ere is the certificate from the Equitable 
Buildin?; & Loa Association, dated the (blank} day of 
March, 1940: 

I 

"Know all _ en by these Presents, That r~ TESSA J. 
LEWIS, admini tratrix of the Estate of GEORGE FRED­
ERICK. STRO EL, DECEASED. for value received, have 
bargained, sold, ssigned and transferred, and by these pres­
ents do bar.g-ai , sell; assign and transfer unto JENNIE 
LOillSE STRO BEL Two and one .. half Income Shares of 
stock of the E UITABLE BUILDING AND LOAN AS­
SOCIATION st nding in my name on the books of the As­
sociation, Serie .... , Certificate 1195, and do hereby con­
stitute and app int James W. Cullen, Secretary, my true 
and la.wful atto ney, irrevocable for me and in my name 
and stead, but t assignee's n~e, to sell, assign, transfer and 
set over, all or ny part of the said stock, and for that pur-
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S. J. lVoodhoiise. 

pose to make and execute all necessary acts of assignment 
and tr1msfer; and one or more persons to substitute witli. 
like full power, hereby- ratifying and corrfhming all that said 
Attorney £hall lawfully do by virtue hereof. 

"IN "WITNESS "\VHEREOF I have hereu_nto set my hand 
and seal the ~ . . . day of Marc-h, 1940. 

ESTATE GEORGE FREDERICK 
STROE·BEL, DECE.A!SED, 

By ......... ; .........•........... 
.A.dtninistratrix 

SHAREHOLDER SIGN HERE.'' 

Mr. Fine: Here is a letter dated March 15,. 1940, from 
Mr. Bradford to Mrs. Lewis: "It will be very much ap­
preciated if, when you are next in town, you will drop by 

my office; or gi"Ve me the name of your attorney 
page 65 ~ in order that I may get in touch with him. Thank­

ing you for your nttention1 I am, Very truly yours, 
Russell T. Btadford." 

(By Mr. Fine) I want to show further that there has 
never been any claim for a tho_usattd sbates of 13tock, but 
that is the only claim of two and a. half shares of Equitable 
Buiklifig and Loan Asso~iation; that he has never g9tten 
out of the case, and he has never been refused the transfer 
of the stock. If my frie1id does hOt agree to have him tes­
tify--

Mr. Kellam: He told me he had never communicated with 
yob regarding it. 

_Mr. Fine: If hecessarrt we can take his evidence by Mr. 
Phlega.r, and send it to yoti, . , LI,, · 
' • I ; ' 

S .• J. W"OODHOUSE, 
having bee1i first duly sworn; testified as follows: 

· Examirtecl by Mr. Fine: 
Q. Your name is l\fr. ,S. J. Woodhouse? 
A. Yes; that ts it. 
Q, And ydt1 knew :Mr. Stroebel in his lifetime, did you 

noU 
A. Very distinctly. 
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S. J. 1-Voodhouse. 

Q. Did you, or not, sell Building and Loan 
page 66 } stock for Mr. Stroebel in his lifetime! 

Mr. Kellam: I object to that. 
The Court: et him go ahead. I will sustain the objec-

tion. 
Mr. Fine: If ould like to put it into the record. 
The Court : es. 

By Mr. Fine: I 

Q. Did you s~ll st. ock to Mr. Stroebel in his lifetime? 
A. A little bif of stock; yes. 
Q. Didn't yo sell the stock that was mentioned in these 

depositions? 
A. I sold-

By the Court : 
Q. What clid ou sell, Mr. Woodhouse, as a matter of factf 

The Court: ·~ take it that your objection applies to his 
testimony in to o and to each and every question Y 

Mr. Kellam: Yes. 

A. I sold $1, ·oo worth of stock. 

The Court : stock was it, do you 
know! 

Witness: It as Equitable and Peoples Building & Loan. 

Bv Mr. Fine: 
··Q. You sold, idi you not, :fifteen shares of Equitable Build­

ing and Loan 4,ssociation stock and ten shares of Peoples 
Building & Loan, and received for those twenty­

page 67 ~ five shares $1,500; is that correct? 
A. IY es; $1,500. He sent a check for $1,400. 

Mr. Fine: I want the record to show I am calling Mr. 
Woodhouse as · n adverse witness. 

The Court: ou did not announce it, and you called him 
as vour witness 

Mr. Fine : I would like, if your Honor please, to make 
that correction, and I want to show, if your Honor please, 
tbat ]1e is the a.n who started the suit. 

The Court : lease ask the question. 
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s. J. ·w oodhouse. 

BY Mr. Fine: 
.. Q. Do you recollect coming in to see me, at my office_ and 

telling me you represented Mrs. Stroebel? · 
A. Yes. 
Q. And you asked me for a copy of this alleged agree-

ment, did you noU 
.A. Yes, sir. 
Q. And I gave you a copy of it V 
A. That is it. 
Q. And you had talked to Mr. Agelasto, had you not, and 

to Mr. Ashburn? 

Mr. Kellam: I object to all questions and answers. 

A. I don't know who you are talking about-Agelasto. 

Mr. ~.,ine: 
Q. Did you talk to Mr. Ashburn T · 

A. Yes. 
page 68 ~ Q. And Mr. Ashburn was associated with Mr. 

Agelastot 
A. I don't even know Mr. Agelasto. · 
Q. Did you get Mr. Ashburn to represent Mrs. Stroebel 

in this case? 
A. Did It 
Q. Yes. 
A. Yes. 
Q. You did. TI1en, after that, didn't you make some clflim 

against the estate yourself? 

::M:r. Kellam: Now, if your Honor please­
Witne88: But that don't mean anything-
The Court: ,v ait a minute. The Court has to pass on 

the objection. The objection is sustained, to which counsel 
excepts. 

Bv Mr. F'ine: 
·Q. Did you make claim against the estate? 

The Court: ·what has it to do with this Y 
l\fr. Fine: That it is not based on facts. 
The Court: Go ahead. 

Bv Mr. Fine: 
., Q. · Answer my question, please. 

. \ 

: i 
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A. Yes; I ma e claim. 
___ Q . .Afld didn' you make this_ claim: "Forty trips f~·om 
Third Street ( S. roebel 's store) to Norfolk, Virginia, and re­
turn talking to · s creditors, negotiating loan, g;etting up in­
formafa~n relati :e to Wolfco, Inc. T~n of these trips made 

inter · ewing· his former wife Jennie Stroebel rela­
page 69 ~ iive t division of bonds, real property and per-

fi!Onal things i:q. their r~s~dence in Edgewater .. 
These ten ·trips to see Mrs. Stroebel made _the f;lg:J;eem~nt 
possible which _,,as signed _by Mi:. and Mrs. Stroebe~ in Al­
fred Anderson' office and fuially approveg. by t~e . Court 
which also mad .their divorce possible. Three of the ten 
trips to ¥rs. Tfsitr9ebel '~ were spent in dividing _furniture. , 
books _and othe household property. I p~rsonally super-
vised this as Il as the division of real property and· 
money."- . 

The Court: an 't you save a whole lot of time in :hand-
ing to him and ' king him-

1\fr. Fine: I anted you to hear it. I want to show that 
they had settieci their aff a1rs. 

By Mr •. Fine: . _ . 
Q. ''During t e forty trips to Norfolk we spent practically 

the whole day s eing various people and going t<? and_ fr~m 
the city. I ii'g11 e this as $10.00 per trip $400. Trip to At­
lantic City, N. · ., when I sold $5,000.00 worth of Building· 
~!id Loan sto~k $100; total $?00. E~pen~es to Atlantic City, 
N. J. and retutjn, $40; ·credit merchandise from Stroebel's 
store $34.38; $~0 advanced fo_ r expenses to . Atlantic City, 
New Jersey. . . eek to nie from proceeds of Building ~nd 
Loan stock in .Aitl~nttc . City t __ New Jersey $100; cash handed 
~-e m.~ Norfolkt Vtrginiaf $701 cash ac1v~mced _i;ne by J. F. 
Woodhouse. for iStro~bel $25 J total credit $239.28; balance 

due 300. 72.'' 
page 70 ~ A. 1 broup;ht the money back. 

Q. hat is your bill that you made claim for, 
isn't it? 

. A. Yes. I ch rged h1m $iOO. 
Q. That is th~claim you made against the estate January 

29, 1940, is it n t T 
A. Yes, for m services. 

(The documeJt which has just been read in evidence was 
filed· marked "Exhibit No. 9.") · 



Tessa Lewis, Adm 'x, etc., v. Jennie B. Stroebel 59 

S. J. Tf' oodhouse. 

By Mr. Fine : 
Q. Didn't you, Mr. ,voodhouse, sue Mr. Stroebel in his 

lifetime for this 1 

Mr. Kellam: Certainlv the record is the best evidence. 
The Court: It is understood that every question and an­

swer is objected to. 

A. That was for my personal service. 

By Mr. Fine: 
Q. And you were denied recovery in the T.rial Justice 

Court in Princess Anne County, were you not Y 
A. I don't know. I never heard anything from it. 
Q. Did you appeal the case f 
A. No. That has nothing to do with this case. 
Q. Did Mrs. Stroebel know you had sold this building and 

Loan Association stock? 
A. No. 
Q. I ask you if this is not a letter addressed from her to 

you T Look at it and read it, .please. 

page 71 ~ Note : The letter referred to was marked "Ex­
hibit No. 10, ,July 30, 1942' ', and is as follows : 

'' Burlington, Iowa, 12/21/39. 

''Dear Mr. Woodhouse: 
"Have been very, very ill, hence my long- silence . 
. ''I do hope the late 1\Ir .. Stroebel paid what was due you. 

J11st had word of bis passing. ·wish I had rn.y machine and 
. jewelry. 

''I have a very small income, and getting .along best I 
can, but would be glad to have my things froni that creature 
he lived with. Am I righU , 

"I will not soon forget the great kindness you and Mr. 
Anderson have Rhown me. I will duly appreciate any in­
formation regarding his affairs, and if I can· claim anything 
else he had left. 

"I hope you have all sticcef3s in the fµ.ture, and a merry 
Christmas and happy New Year. 

'' Thanking you in advance, I remain, 

'' Yours sincerely, 

'' MRS. JANE BURRUS, 
"NE·E STROEBEL. · 
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S. J. TVoodhouse. 

'' I have resu ed my family name of Bu nus. Ad. 422 
Columbia Street.'' 

By the Court : 
Q. Did you re eive that f 
A. Yes. 
Q. You receiv d iU 
A. I received hat letter. 

Mr. Fine: I want to show that that letter is 
page 72 ~ based on a concocted scheme. She knew the stock 

was s Id, and she wanted to see what else she 
could get out of ·t. 

,,ritness: Tha letter was taken out of my pocket-stolen. 

By Mr. Fine: 
Q. ·what dicl s 1e mean when she said, ''if I can claim any-

thing else that ]ie had left¥'' 

Mr. Kellam: l object to that. 
The Court : Opjection sustained. 
\Vi tness : Th was a personal letter. 
The Court : hen we get through, I will pass on all of 

them. 
vVitness: The ·e is nothing to this case. The law is very 

sitnpfo. They a e basing it on one paragraph. 

By Mr. Fine : 
Q. This letter was written a few days after the death of 

Mr. Stroebel, wa n't iU Mr. Stroebel died on December 11, 
1939; this lette was written December 31, 19·39; is that 
rig·htf 

A. I don't kn w. I don't know anything· about that. I 
am not intereste in when he died. 

Q. You are no interested in when he died Y 
A. No. 
Q. After you ot this letter you went down and saw Mr. 

A.shh n; is that righU 
page 73 ~ A. es. 

Q. idn't you retain Mr. Bridgers in this case! 
A. After A.shh rn was too busy to do the work, I retained 

Bridg-ers. 
Q. And didn't you give him the copy of this purported 

agreement I g·av you,. and show it to Mr. Bridgers! 
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S. J. Woodhouse. 

A. Sure I did. . 
Q. You did, did you f 
A. Yes. 
Q. Did you arrange for the bond for this lady, so she 

ccould bring this suit t 
A. Yes. 
Q. Then you are '' the man behind the gun,'' are you not t 

What do you expect to get out of this, Woodhouse? 
A. I will not answer that question. 
Q. You will not answer that question Y 
A. No. . 

Mr. Bridgers: If Mr. Fine is attempting to bring in an 
<embarrassing situation in my behalf-· 

Mr. Fine: I have not said a thing against Bridgers. You 
.are relying on what has been told you. 

By Mr. Fine: 
Q. Now, don't you know that all the stock that is involved 

here is two and a half shares of 'Equitable ·Building and 
Loan Association stock that Mr. Bradford tried to get trans­

ferred? 
page 7 4 } A. Two and a half shares t 

Q. Do you lmow anything· about Mr. Bradford 
being in the caseY 

A. Russell Bradford t 
Q. Yes. 
A. He is just a cheap lawyer. 

The Court : Don't argue. 

Bv :M:r. Fine: 
"'Q. Mr. Bradford would not make a claim for a thousand 

shares of stock for you, would he 7 
A. No ; I would not trust him. 
Q. You would not trust him f 
A. No. 

The Court : Just keep quiet, please. What is the next 
question? 

Mr. Fine : That is all. 
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S. J. Woodhouse. 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

By Mr. Kell : Without waiving the objections Y 

Q. The mo11e for the stock which you sold in New Jersey 
for Mr. Stroeoe , what did you do with it! 
. A. I gavif it o him. 

Q. You 'gave t to Mr. StroebeU 
A. Absolutely 

page 75 ~ Mr Fine : If your Honor please, I snbpoenaed 
Mr. aul Ackiss, who represented Mr. Stroebel 

in his lifetime · connection with the case of Woodhouse v. 
Stroebel, and b agreement with Mr. Ackiss and Mr. Kellam 
we have agreed that this would be his testimony. 

The Court: ad it. . 

. Note : The· pl per was filed as Exhibit No. 11 and is as 
follows: 

"Mr. Louis B. e 

'' Virginia Beach, Virginia, 
'' July 29, 1942. 

Attorney at La 
National Ba~jf Commerce Bldg. 
Norfolk, Virg,a 

"Mr. V. Hope Ifellam 
Attorney at La: 
Board of Trad Building 
Norfolk, Vire,· · 

''Gentlemen: . 
"Pursuant to agreement of counsel for plaintiff and de­

fendant, it is ag eed that if present as a witness for defend­
ant on ,July 30, 942, at 10 :30 A.· M. in the Circuit Court oi 
the City of Port mouth, Virginia, I would testify as follows: 

'' That some o or three years ago I represented Mr. 
Stroebel, who w s the husband of Mrs. Jennie Burrus Stroe­
bel, before E. . Gresham, Trial Justice of Princess .Anne 
County, who w s being sued by one Mr. Shep Woodhouse 
for commissions due on sale of real estate or sale of some 
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Tessa J. Lewis. 

stock, I do not recall which, but the verdict of the Trial 
Justice Court was that he should not recover. 

'' Very truly yoi1rs, 

P. ""\"\'. ACIGSS.'' 

page 76 ~ The Court: You move to strike out Mr. Wood-
house's testimony 1 · 

Mr. Kellam : Yes, sir. 
The Court: Motion sustained, to which action of the 

Court counsel for the defendant excepted. 

TESSA J. LEWIS, 
having been first duly sworn; testified as follows: 

Examined bv Mr. Fine: 
Q. ¥ ou a1;e Tessa J. Lewis, are you not 7 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. You ate the adininisti~a.trix of the estate of G. F. Stroe­

bel, deceased Y 
A. Yes. 
Q. And you gave a bond, with a surety company as Iour 

surety, duly filed in the Circuit Court of Princess nne 
· CountvY 

A. Yes. 
Q. Were you familiar with the affairs of Mr. StroebeH 
A. Yes; I was. 
Q. How long did you work for him prior to his death Y 
A. About two vears . 

. Q. Are you f aiiiiliai: with the divorce proceedings between 
Mr. and Mrs. Stroebel when there was a settlemenU · 

A. No. 
page 77 ~ Q. You were not familiar with the divorce pro-
. ceedings? 
A. No. 
Q. Do you remember when he died in December, 1939-

the date? 
A. The 11th. 
Q. Prior to his death and prior to the divorce proceeding 

liad matters between him and his wife been settled Y 
4. Yes; they ha~. 
Q. Row do you know that, 
A. Because I heard him say they were. 



64 Supr me Court of Appeals of Virginia 

Tessa J. Lewis. 

Q. You heard him say that they were? 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Did he ev r own one thousand shares of Building and 

Loan Associati n stock, either himself or jointly with any­
one? 

A. No, sir. 

Mr. Kellam: I would make objection, but I understand I 
ca.n make it late , and I will not make it now. 

The Court : 1All right. -

Bv Mr. Fine: 
"'Q. ,vere you familiar with his business affairs? 
A. Yes; I wa. 
Q. Did you h Ip conduct the store down there with him.¥ 

A. I did. 
page 78 ~ Q. as there ever been any demand by Mrs. 

Stro!bel, by Mr. Ashburn or Mr. Agelasto, or any 
other lawyer, a out a thousand shares of Building and Loan 
Association sto k? 

.A. No, there has not. 
Q. Was first knowledge of the demand of a thousand 

shares when pa ers were served on you f 
A. Yes; that is the first I knew of it. 

l\fr. Kellam: Your Honor, we object to the form of the 
question. 

The Oourt: You want to object to every question? . 
Mr. Kellam: Yes, sir. 
Mr. },ine: I didn't so understand it. 
Tl1e Court: All right; object to each one; the objection 

is sustained as to tha.t particular one. 
Mr. Kellam: Yes, sir. 
Tl1e Court: nd note an exception each time, Mr. Pblegar. 

Bv Mr. Fine: 
·Q. Does Mr. Stroebel owe Mrs. Stroebel anything? 

Mr. Kellam: Objected to. 
The Court: Objection sustained. Answer the question .. 

A. The near st of my ability, all ag·reements have been 
paid. 
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Tessa J. Lewis. 

The Court: What did she say Y 
page 79} Mr. Bridgers: She said ''The nearest of my 

ability all agreements have been paid." I don't 
know what she means by that 

.By Mr .. Fine: 
·Q. ,Vhen the Building and Loan stock was sold by Mr. 

Woodhouse, did Mrs. Stroebel know about it Y 

l\fr. Kellam: How in the world can she say that t 

A. They both voted under that agreement. 

Iiv Mr. Fine: 
"'Q. Do you know that of your own knowledg"eY 
A. Because Mr. Woodhouse sometimes had the paper made 

out so he could go up there and sell the bonds. 
Q. The Building and Loan Association stock was in both 

names? 
A. Yes. 

Mr. Kellam: We object. 
Mr. Fine: The depositions so indicate it. 
Mr. Bridgers: The depositions may, but this witness can't 

testify to it. 

By Mr .. Fine: 
Q. Do you lmow that they were in both namesf 
A. Yes. 
Q. Did she get her sliare of iU 
A. Yes, sir. 

Mr. Kellam: We object. 
The Court: If she knows it, I think she can testify to it .. 

page 80 } By Mr. Fine: 
Q. Now, in the lifetime of Mr. Stroebel, wasn't 

he also represented by Mr. McBain? 
A. Yes, sir. 

1\fr. Kellam: I object to that. 
The Court: I sustain the objection. 

Bv Mr. Fine: 
"Q. And these two and a half shares of stock now outstand-
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1.'essa J. Lewis. 

ing, did or did ot Mrs. Stroebel think that stock was sold¥ 

Ur~- .Kellam: Objecte4 to .. 
The Court: ustained. 

A. He wrote 

By Mr. Fine: · or the. purposes of t~e record: . 
Q. And did h , or not, write to the Building and Loan As-

sociationf 
A. Yes; he · 

Mr, Kellam: :we object to that. 
The Court! Objection sustained~ It has nothing to do 

with this case. 

Bv Mr. Fine: . 
. .. Q~ And did . t Mr. Woodhouse state that that certificate 
had been mispl ced Y Is that a letter (handing paper)? 

A. Yes. 

Mr. Kellam: We object to that; if your Honor please. 
Mr. Fine: I will read the letter for the purposes of the 

reco d. · . 
page _Si } Th Court: You can file it. I have sustained 
. the bjection. , 

Note: The etter ref erred to is filed marked .''Exhibit 
No. 12, July 31 i942, '' and is as_ fallows : 

''EOUIT.A.BLE 
BUILDING .A.ND" LOAN ASSOCIATION 

1.421 Atlantic Atre. 
Atlantic City, N. J. 

"WiIIard P. M Bain, Esq., 
411 Board of rade Building 
Norfolk, Virgi · a. 

September 17, 1938 

R.e : G. F. Stroebel 

''Dear Mr. Mc ain: 
'' In respons to your letter of September 15, i938 an<.l 
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Tessa J. Lewis. 

supplementing our own letter of June 24, 1938, we enclose 
yon herewith a clipping from the Atlantic City Daily Press 
financial section in which vou will find the names of several 
persons who might be interested in purchasing the shares 
of your client, Mr. G. F. Stroebel. . 

'' With our letter of June 24, 1938, we enclosed you a new 
certificate. No. 3526, in the amount of $2,000 in the name of 
G. F. Stroebel, rewritten from Certificate No. 737. Our rec­
ords also show as outstanding in the name of G. F. Stroebel 
a Certificate No. 1195 for 211., shares in the face amount of 
$500. ,,,. 

''V-l e· would appreciate it if you will advise Mr. Stroebel 
that Certificate No. 3536 is in your possession, since a Mr. 
S .• T. Woodhouse of London Bridge, Virginia, advised this 
office on Septembc.sr 13 that Mr. Stroebel had misplaced thie 
certificate. 

''Very truly yours, 

''EQUITABLE BffiLDING & LOAN ASSN 
''JAMES vV. CULLEN, Secretary'' 

page 82 ~ Mr. Kellam: I ~enew mv motion to strike out 
the letter. · 

The Court : The motion is sustained. 

By Mr. Fine: 
Q. Did Mr. Stroebel ever, in his lifetime, own, jointly or 

individually, a thousand shares of Building and Loan stock? 
A. No, he has not. 

Mr. Kellam: We would like to object, your Honor. 

By Mr. Fine: 
· Q. Do you know that of your own Im ow ledge Y 
A. Of my own knowledge. 
Q. Did he ever own any more than the 25 shares of Build­

ing and Loan Association stock that has been cashed in, and 
for whic~ we received $1,500, apd the two and a half shares 
that are still on the books of the Equitable Building and 
Loan? 

A. That is all. 

Mr. Kellam: We object. 
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Tessa J. Lewis. 

By Mr. Fine: 
Q. Are you f miliar with all the records? 
A. Yes. 
Q. Ha.ve you ade diligent search for them all f 
A. Yes, sir. 

~fr. Fine : Th t is ail. 
The Court: he objections are sustained and exception 

noted by the def ndant. 

page 83 ~ The Court: Is there any other testimony? 
Mr. Fine: Yes, sir. Your Honor, I am penal­

ized by not takin · the testimony of the lady in Iowa. I think 
if I could take h; deposition and cross-examine her it would 
be conclusive. 

Since my frie d has not agreed to Mr. Bradford's testi­
mony, I would I e to take his testimony and put it in the 
record, if your onor please. 

The Court: If you want to take his testimony, I will per­
mit you to do so I I overrule your motion to eontinue for the · 
purpose of ta.kiyg the deposition in Burlingion. 

Mr. Fine: I roulcl like to take the deposition in Atlantic 
City over again. 

The .Court: 1',T o. The case was set for today; the Court 
ha~ something· e'Ise to do besides continuing the matter so 
as to take depo" itions. 

Mr. Fine : I as misled. 
r11he Court: hat motion is overruled. As to Mr. Brad-

ford's testimonv vou can take that. 
Mr. Fine: Ii w about mv answer and cross-bill? 
The Court:. hat is in; )"OU have filed it. 
Mr. Fine : I nderstood I was only going to trial on the 

notice of motion · 
The Court : I understood the trial would be had and de­

termi ed today, and I am going to do it. 
page 84 ~ Mr. Fine: On . the answer and cross-bill in 

· equit. T 
The ·court : es. 
Mr. Fine: I ould like to ¢lo it, but I can't do it today. 
The Court: ou should have had your witness here. 
Mr. Fine: Bd counsel told me that you would not hear 

it todav. 
The "'court : can't help what counsel told you. 
l\f.r. Fine: T e matter has not matured. They hav~ not 

accepted service~ 



·r Tessa Lewis, A.dm 'x, etc.~, v. Jennie B. Stroebel 69 

Ru.ssell T. Bradford .. 

The Court : I will make them do it. 
1\fr. Fine: All rig·ht. You are the captain, and I will have 

to take my orders from you. 
:Mr. Bridgers: We don't know when Mr. Bradford will 

be available. 
Mr. Fine: I have done my part to get him here. 
The Court: To accommodate you, I will take a recess 

until half past one o'clock. If he is not here, I will set an­
other time for his deposition, and then you can go ahead 
.and ar~;ue your case right after dinner. 

(Thereupon, at 12 :50 a recess was taken until 1 :30, at the 
expiration of which the Court reconvened with the same par-
ties present as heretofore noted. . 

page 85 } RUSSELL T. BRADFORD, 
having been first duly sworn, testified as- follows~ 

Examined bv Mr. Fine: 
Q. You ar-e Mr. Russell T. Bradford¥ 
A. Yes. 
Q. Mr. Bradford, you have been practicing law for ~ow 

manv vears! .A: About twenty-one years. 
Q. Mr. Bradford, you are also Assistant United States 

District Attorney for the Eastern District of Virginia, are 
you not? 

A. Yes . 
. Q. Apd I believe, Mr. Bradford, you were associated with 

l\'h·. Alfred Anderson for a number of years, were you noU 
A. We had office space together. 
Q. Mr. Bradford, I hand you Exhibit No. 8, and ask you 

if you did not write: this letter to Miss Tessa J. Lewis, March 
15, 1940? 

A. Yes ; that is my signature. 
Q. ·wm you please read it, lVIr. Bradford Y 
A. T.his letter is on rny stationery under date March 15, 

1940, addressed to Miss Tessa J. Lewis: ''It will be very 
much appreciated if, when you are next in town, you will drop 
bv mv office, or give me the name of your attorney in order 

· •. tl1at I may get in touch with him. Thanking you 
page 86 ~ for your attention, I am, very truly yours." I 

wrote that letter. 
Q. Mr. Bradford, by reference to that, did you, or not, 

have a c.onversation with Louis B. Fine? 
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Russell T. Bradford. 

A. l\fr. Ii1ine, · don't remember. 
Q. I hand yo~ a letter dated March 5 from 0. M. Burrus,. 

and· ask von if Jou did not have that matter in hand which 
is· the suhjcct atter contained in regard to your letter ad­
dre&sed to Tess Lewis 1 

Mr. Kellam: I object to that for this reason: In the 
first place, it is not addressed to Mr. Bradford; and, i_n the 
second place, he said he and Mr. Anderson had joint offices,. 
but he did nots y that they were engaged together with their 
va dons clients. /' 

!\fr. Fine: Mt. Anderson was City Attorney, and that will 
come out in the levidenM in time. 

Tl1e Con rt: tet him get through. 
Witness : Mt recollection is that Mr. Alfred Anderson 

became City .At orney December 1, 1939·, and he turned over 
to me his practi .. e. Prior to that time I had been associated 
with the firm of Vandeventer & Black, in Norfolk, but, when 
he became City .. ttorney, I came back to the former associa­
tion that I had~ad. I had formerly been with Shelton and 
Anderson with n office arang·ement, and after Mr. Shelton's 
death I continu Id with Mr. Anderson with an offic.e arrange-

ment, and about 1934 went with Vandeventer & 
page 87 ~ Black WI1en he became City Attorney. Mr. An-

dersol !rave me his practice. My recollection is,. 
although it is n t cle.ar at all, that this letter did come to Mr . 

.. A.nderson, and, ccording: to the arrangement we had, I wrote 
that letter prob bly after having· received tl1is letter. 

By Mr. :Fine : 
Q. Now, whe yon say ''this letter'' you refer to Exhibit 

No. 51 do vou n t? 
· A. ·Tliat" is ri ht. All of this is verv hazv in mv mind. 
Q. And Exhiijit No. 5 is as follows·: To Mr . .Anderson: 

"I am enclosin~ an assfo.nment for transfer of stock on the 
company books '"{vhich it "Till be necessary to have the admin­
istratrix sign beiore they will transfer the stock on the books 
of th<1 company; This stock was given to her (my aunt Mrs. 
Stroebel) befor her lmsbnnd 's death and was in both theh· 
names. The st ck i~ in her possession also. Would von 
please Ree if th~ Tessa J. Lewfs mentioned will shm the· e.n­
closed paper. a d return same to me. Whatever the chare;e 
is yon may also send to me. If yon are unable to secure tbe 
signature will . ou please return the paper to me. Yours 
truly N. 0. Bur us." 
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Russell 1.'. Bradford. 

Did you, or not, receive, in company with Exhibit No. 5, 
Exhibit No. 6 and IDxhibit No. 71 . 

A. I am not sure whether this was a part, or not, Mr. 
Fine. It may have been, but it has been quite a 

page 88 ~ few years ago, and it is a matter which did not 
make much impression on me, and I haven't much 

recollection about it. The more I think .of tliis, I think you 
did come to my offfoe about that. The facts of this are very, 
very vague. 

Q. Didn't you hand me this letter No. 5, and No. 6 and 
No. T? No. 7 is the letter from the Bank of Burlington to 
O. M. Burrus. 

A. That may be true. I don't recollect what I gave you. 
It. _probablv is true. 

Q. Did you ever make demand for a thousand shares of 
stock? 

A. Do any of these papers indicate how many shares there 
were1 . 

Q. No, except two and a half shares of income stock. 
A. I don't recall the number of sha.res. 
Q. If this paper is correcf a:qd you handed it to me, it 

states two and a half shares; is that correct? 
A. It speaks for itself. 
Q. And this letter from the bank covers the assignment 

of the stock, doesn't it, ncldressed to Norman O. Burrus, 
from whom Mr. Anderson received the other T 

A. That is a matter for the Court to determine. 
Q. But they are the letters you handled? 
A. I think so. I wish my recollection were clearer. 

page 89} CROSS EXAMINATION. 

By Mr. Kellam: Without waiving objections. 
Q. Were you familiar at all with an agreement alleged to 

have been entered into between Mr. and Mrs. Stroebel, Mr. 
Anderson representing Mrs. Stroebel and Mr. Ralph Daugh­
ton Mr. Stroebel f 

A. I remember I came over to Mr. Anderson's office about 
September 1938 with the view of renewing old acquaintances · 
then in his office prior to that, because he was leaving tho 
first of January 1939, and I remember there were some 
papers drawn, and, since you mention Mr. Daughton 's name, 
I remember that he was representing one of the parties. I 
was not in the drawing of the papers, but I do recollect these 
papers. 
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Miss Tessa Lewis. 

Mr. Fine: I ,; ish to re-introduce these papers which have 
already been ma ked. 

The Court: hev have already been marked. 
Mr. Fine: I understand, but I want to put them in again. 

The Court: ~ to the objections which Mr. Kellam has 
made, I sustain t c objection. 

Mr. Fine: I xccpt. 

page 90 ~ MISS TESSA LEWIS, 
recalled, ,testified as follows: 

Examined by M~. Fine: 
Q. I hand yo Exhibit No. 8, which is a letter from Mr. 

Bradford; is th t the letter which Mr. Bradford wrote and 
which vou hand d me? 

A. Yes. 

Mr. Kellam: The same objection as to that. 

By Mr. Fine: 
Q. I ask you hether or not these are the letters which 

you handed me , y Mr. Bradford, and whether the demand 
was for two anc a half shares of stock? 

A. Yes. 
Q. Those are he letters which you have seen from me to 

vou? 
· A. Yes. 

Q. And you a e ref erring to Exhibits Nos. 5, 6 and 7? 
A. That is ri ht 
Q. Has :Mr. B ·adford ever made any demand on you-

The Court: hat is already testified to. 

A. Only two 

Bv Mr. Fine: 
··Q. And this w s not seen until you got the interest in the 

property? 
A. That is ri ht. 

page 91 ~ CROSS EXAMINATION. 

R~r Mr. Kellam: ·without waiving objections. 
Q. Do I unde stand you to say you were present at Mr. 
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IJfiss Tessa Lewis. 

Fine's office at a conference between Mr. Bradford and Mr. 
Fine! 

A. In conference with them 1 
Q. ·were you present at Mr. Fine's office at a conference 

between Mr. Fine and Mr. Bradford? 
A. I was not in any conference with them. 
Q. Were you there °when Mr. Fine and Mr. Bradford were 

talking- about this matter-Mr. Fine and lfr .. Bradford 1 
A. When they were talking about thesP )apers. 
Q. Where was it? 
A. When he told me-when I got this letter­
Q. WhoY 
A. Mr. Bradford. 
·Q. You got the letter from Mr. Bradford T 
1L Yes. 
Q. Then what did you do? 
A. I went up to Mr. Fine's office. 
Q. Then when did you see Mr. Bradford Y 
A. I saw him todav. 
Q. That is the first time, isn't it, since that letter1 Isn't 

that the first time you ever saw him, Miss Lewis t 
page 92 }- . .A. I don't recall. 

Q. Isn't tha.t the :first time you ever saw Mr. 
Bradford? 

A. No; I have seen him before. 
Q. ,vnere did you see llim? 
A. Up at his office. 
Q; At whose office? 
A. 1.\fr. Fine's office. 
Q. You saw Mr. Bradford up at Mr. Fine's office? 
A. Yes. 
Q. \'\'hen was it? 
A. That was a long time ago. 
Q. What did you see him at Mr. Fine's office about? 
A. I went to see him a.bout this letter that he wrote. 
Q. Yon went to l\fr. Fine's office to see about the letter 

Mr. Bradford wrote! 
A. Yes; to find out what it was all about. 
Q. And you found Mr. Bradford up there at that time! 
A. I believe it was at that time. 
Q. Had you told Mr. Fine when you were coming in to see 

liim? 
A. Lots of times I had appointments with him. 
Q. I ask you if you told 1\fr. Fine you were coming in to 

see him about this letter· of Mr. Bradford Y 
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Miss Tessa Lewis. 

A. Did I com to see him about this letter T 
Q. bout this letter Mr. Bradford wroteY 

page 93 ~ A. o you mean I told Mr. Fine? 

it? 
Q. es, that you were coming to see him about 

.A.. I sent the letter to him. 
Q. You sent i to himY 
A. I made a appointment with him. 
Q. You made an appointment with whom f 
A. Mr. Fine. . 
Q. Then you ent it, and did not talk to him f 
A. I don't r ember whether I took it in or sent it to 

him. 
Q. As a matt r of fact, you don't know wbetber you had 

ever seen Mr. radf.ord before today, or notf 
A. Yes; I ha seen him before. 
Q. How ofte did you see him in Mr. Fine's office? 
A. Once I re ember. 
Q. Did you e e·r see him more than once f 
A. I don't th nk I did. 
Q. Where wa Mr. Fine's office then? 
A. In the Ba k of Commerce Building. 
Q. How man.. letters did you receive in reference to this 

matter you are estifying about T 
A. This is th first one I got. 
Q. I8 that th first you got T 
A. Yes. 

page 94 }­

A. Yes. 

Q. Did you g·et any more than that t 
A. No. This one here. 
Q. This is the only one here f 

Mr. Fine: T at is Exl1ibit No. 8. · 
Witness: T at was' back in 1939. 

By Mr. Kellam 
Q. Did you e rer get this f 
A. These we e handed over in Mr. Fine's office. 
Q. ~o han d them to you 1 
A. Mr. Brad ord. · 
Q. Mr. Brad ord, at l\fr. Fine's office, handed all those 

letters? 
A. Yes. 
Q. And you ere there and saw themY 
A. Yes. 
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page 95 } In the Circuit Court of Princess Anne County, 
Virginia. 

Mrs. .Tennie Burrus Stroebel 
t'. 

Tessa Lewis, Executrix of the Estate of G. F. Stroebel, some.;. 
times known as Vv. F. Stroebel. 

NOTICE OF APPEAL. 

To Messrs. R:aymol!-cl B. Bridgers and V. Hope Kellam, At­
torneys for J enme Burrus Stroebel: 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on the 2nd dav of Octo­
ber. 1942, at 10:30 o'clock A. M., or as soon thereafter as 
we may be heard, at the Courtroom of the Circuit Court of 
the Citv of Portsmouth. Va .. the undersig11ed will present to 
Hon. B. D. V{hite, Judg~ of the 28th Judicial Circuit, who 
presided over the trial of the above mentioned case. which 
ls nending in the Circuit Court of Princess Anne County, 
Vir!6nia. sitting- in the Circuit Court of the City of Ports­
mouth. Virginia .• J ulv 30. 1942. c.;tenog-ra.uhic report of the 
testimony and otl1er incidents of the trial in the above case, 
to be authenticated and verified bv him. 

And nlso tbat the undersiu11ec1 ~7ill. at J 2 o'clock noon of 
the Rame day. place, request the Clerk of the said Court 
-at liis offices to make up imd. deliver to counsel a transcript 
of the recorrl in the above entitled cause for tbe purpose of 
n1~e~entin.~· the ~ame with a petition to the .Supreme Court 
of Anpeals of Virginia for a writ of error and supersedeas 
therein. 

TESSA LEWIS, 
Exflcutrix of the Estate of G. F. Stroe­

bel. sometimes known as W. F. 
Stroebel. 

By LOUIS · B. FINE, 
Her Attorney. 

Service accepted this 29 day of Sept., 1942. 

RAYMOND B. BRIDGERS, 
V. HOPE KELLA...'1, 
.Attorneys for the Complainant. 
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page 96 ~ UDGE'S CERTIFICATE. . 

I, B. D. Wb1ie, ,Judge of' the Circuit Court of Princess 
Anne County. , irginia, who presided over the foregoing 
trial of _Jen.nie urrns Stroebel v. Tessa Lewis, Executrix 
of ·the Estate o~ G. F. Stroebel, sometimes known as 1.V. F. 
Stroebel, in the~. ircuit Court of Princess Anne County, Vir­
gini_a, ,July 30, 942, do certify that the foregoing is. a true­
and correct cop. and report of all the evidence and all other 
incidents of the said trial of the said cause, with the objec­
tiohs and except· ons o-f the respective parties as therein set 
forth. 

And I furthe certify tllat the attorneys for the plaintiff' 
had reasonable otice, in writing, given by counsel for the 
defendant, of th time and place when the foregoing report 
of the testimon and other incidents of the trial would be 
tendered and pr sented to tlie undersigned for sig11ature and 
authentfoation. . 

Given under Iljly l1and this 2d day of October, 1942, within 
sixty days after !the entry of the final judgment in said cause. 

page 97 ~ 

B. D. WHITE, 
Judge of the Circuit Court of Princess 

Anne County, Virginia. 

LERK'S CERrIFICATE. 

I, William F. udgins, Clerk of the Circuit Court of Prin­
cess .Anne Counfy, Virginia, do certify that the foregoing· is 
a true transcrip!t of the records in the case of Mrs. Jennie 
Burrus i8troebe~ Plaintiff. v. Tessa Lewis, Executrix of the 
Estate of G. F. troebel, sometimes known as W. F. Stroebel, 
Defendant, la tel pending in said Court. 

I do further irtify that the same was not made up, com­
pleted and deli .red until the plaintiff had received reason­
able notice ther of, and of the intention of the defendant to 
apply to the S1 preme Court of Appeals of Virginia for a 
writ of error t the judgment therein. 

Given under y hand this 21st day of October, 1942. 

·wrLLIA1\f F. HUDGINS, 
Clerk of tl1e. Circuit Court of Princess 

Anne County, Virginia. 

Copy-Teste: 

:M:. B. WATTS, C. C. 
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